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About Ircon DHHL

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
(IrconDHHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon
International Limited was incorporated on 11th May,
2017 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for executing
the project works of “Six — laning of Davanagere —
Haveri from km 260+000 to km 338+923 of NH-48
(old NH-4) in the State of Karnataka to be executed as
Hybrid Annuity Project on DBOT under NHDP Phase —
V” in accordance with the terms of the Concession
Agreement, signed with the National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) on 19th June 2017”.
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STATEMENT OF EQUITY & LOAN CAPITAL

[As on 31.03.2020]
Particulars Approved/Sanctioned Drawn Amount
Investment from (As on 31.03.2020)

Holding Company,
Ircon International Limited
1. Equity Share Capital Rs. 217.05 Crores Rs. 164.05 Crores
2.Secured Loan Rs. 503.00 Crores Rs. 269.22 Crores
(Borrowings)

7 503.00

m Approved/Sanctioned
Investment from IRCON

M Drawn Amount

Equity Share capital Secured
Loan(Borrowings)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 3rd Annual Report together with
the Audited Financial Statements and Business Affairs of the Company for the Financial
Year 2019-20.

Business Operational Highlights: Present State of Company’s Affairs:

IrconDHHL, a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON was incorporated on May 11, 2017 as a
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for executing the project works of “Six-laning of Davanagere-
Haveri from km 260+000 to km 338+923 of NH-48 (old NH-4) in the State of Karnataka to be
executed as Hybrid Annuity Mode on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFQOT)
basis under NHDP Phase — V” in accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement,
signed with the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) on June 19, 2017. The concession
period of the project is 15 years excluding construction period of 912 days (30 months)
commencing from the appointed date i.e. January 24, 2018 and the works are progressing on
the available fronts. The Scheduled date of completion is 24.07.2020 which has been extended
up to 24.10.2020 (by 3 months for the effect of COVID-19). The scope of work comprises of six-
laning of 78.923 Km (total length of Highway) of existing four lane main carriage way with
construction of 154.654 Km of service road length including major bridges culverts, Vehicular
underpasses, pedestrian underpasses, flyovers and other allied works.

In terms of concession agreement, the total project bid cost is ¥1177 Crores plus escalation
and First Year O&M cost is ¥10 Crore. 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by
NHAI during construction period in 5 instalments of 8% each (on achieving Physical Progress
of 10%, 30%, 50%, 75% & 90%) and balance 60% construction cost shall be arranged by the
SPV. After considering reimbursement of 40% of Project bid cost, the balance construction
cost of ¥720.05 Crore (including interest during construction), proposed to be funded by Equity
and Loan Investment of 217.05 Crore and ¥503 Crore respectively.

The Client has failed to hand over 100% encumbrance free land within 180 days from the
appointed date as per the terms of agreement. The scope available as on 181 day was to the
tune of 74% only. In spite of the same, the Project has achieved 2" Project Milestone of 30%
Physical Progress and 35% Financial progress within the stipulated time period (within cure
period of 90 days) and the 3™ Project Milestone with 75% Physical progress and 70%
Financial progress was due for achievement on or before February 3, 2020 (including cure
period of 90 days). It could not be achieved since the scope available as on 31.01.2020 was
81.39% only (by excluding the scope of works on the land not made available by the NHAI and
works stopped by locals demanding additional structures and modification to the existing /
under construction structures — 18.61%). The physical progress achieved at site as on 31%
January 2020 is 62.83 % against total scope covered in the Concession Agreement and it is
77.19% (62.83/0.8139) when worked out from the scope of work available to the
Concessionaire. The Financial Progress as on 31.01.2020 was 61.74% and it is 75.86%
(61.74/0.8139) for the scope of work available to the SPV. The equated Physical & Financial
progress as on 31.01.2020 meets the requirements for 3' project milestone within cure period.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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As on March 31, 2020, the total physical progress of 66.77% and financial progress of 65.37%
is achieved against total scope covered in the Concession Agreement. The scope available to
SPV by NHAI was 81.39% only. Request is being made for descoping / delinking the works
affected due to non-availability of land and due to stoppage of works by the locals as on March,
31 2020.

During the Year, IrconDHHL had achieved revenue from Operating Turnover of Rs.39,283.50
Lacs and profit/(Loss) after tax for the Financial Year 2019-20 of Rs.77.44 Lacs.

The Project Construction cost of Rs.720.05 Crores, funded by Equity and Loan Investment of
Rs.217.05 Crores and Rs.503.00 Crores respectively out of which IRCON has infused Equity of
Rs. 164.05 Crores and Rs. 269.22 Crores as loan as on 315 March 2020.

Financial Highlights: Financial Performance of the Company:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for
the Financial Year 2019-20 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) with a transition
from erstwhile Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (‘Indian GAAP’). The
accounting policies have accordingly been reframed for compliance of IND AS.

Financial performance indicators as on 31 March 2020:
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)

SI.No. For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
1. Equity Share Capital 16,405.00 10,405.00
gltjr:;ruli)quny (includes Reserves and 354.82 277 38
3, | Loan from Holding Company 26,922.00 13000.00
(Borrowings)
4, Intangible Assets under Development 0 0
5. Total Assets and Liabilities
6. Revenue from Operations 39,283.50 31,270.32
7. Other Income 113.66 170.13
8. Total Income (6) + (7) 39,397.16 31,440.45
9 Profile/Loss b(_efore Depreciation, Finance 1871.01 574.90
Costs, Exceptional Iltems and Tax

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Expense

10. Total Expenses (9) + (10) 39,284.67 31,114.52

11. Less: Depreciation 0.12

12 Profit/(l‘_oss) before Finance Costs, 1871.01 574.90
Exceptional Items and Tax Expense

13. Less: Finance Costs 1758.40 248.97

14. Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items 112.49 32593
and Tax Expense

15. Add/(Less):Exceptional ltems - -

16. Profit/Loss before Tax Expense 112.49 325.93

17. Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 35.05 111.62

18. Profit/Loss for the year (1) 77.44 214.31

19. Other Comprehensive Income (2) - -

20. Total (1+2) 77.44 214.31

21. Balance of Profit/loss for earlier years 277.38 63.07

oy Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption ) )
Reserve

23. Less: Transfer to Reserve - -

24. Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Less: Dividend paid on Preference

25. - -
Shares

26. Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -

27. Balance carried forward 354.82 277.38

Dividend & Appropriation to Reserve:

In view of the status of the project which is under construction mode, the Board of
Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2019-20.

As per the applicability of IND AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the
head ‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of
Rs.354.82 Lakhs in Retained Earnings as on 31% March 2020.

Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2020:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs.217.05 Crores comprising of 21,70,50,000
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each and the Paid-up, Subscribed and Issued Share Capital of the
Company is Rs.164.05 Crores comprising of 16,40,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each.

During the FY17-18, the Authorised Share Capital was increased from Rs.5 Crores to
Rs.217.05 Crores at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 15" January 2018.

The Company has increased the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company from Rs.104.05 Crores
to Rs.164.05 Crores in the Financial Year 2019-20.

The Details of the Rights issue since incorporation are as follows:

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Name of Allottee

Date of Allotment No. of Equity Shares
allotted (of Rs.10 each)
April 5, 2018 2,00,00,000
August 16, 2018 3,40,00,000
October 17,2018 5,00,00,000
September 19, 2019 6,00,00,000

Ircon International Limited
(Holding Company)

Cash Flows from the Project:

The total -Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is Rs. (18,191.28) Lakhs.

Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies:

Your Company is a wholly-owned Subsidiary of Ircon International Limited. For the period under
review there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of the Company.

Board of Directors & Key Management Personnel:

The Company’s management is headed by five Non-Executive Nominee directors as Board of
the Company as appointed by the Holding Company of your Company as per Articles of
Association of the Company: -

Sl. No. | Directors Date of Appointment | DIN
1. Mr. Shyam Lal Gupta, Part-time Chairman 01.11.2019 07598920
2. Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Director 11.05.2017 05308809
3. Mr. Rajendra Singh Yadav, Director 27.01.2019 07752915
4. Mr. Basant Kumar, Director* 19.09.2019 08556555
5. Mr. Surajit Dutta, Director 05.09.2019 06687032

*Mr. Basant Kumar Cessed to be the Director of the Company w.e.f. 15t August 2020.
Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. No. | Key Personnel of Company App?;tr?tr%fent PAN No.
L ooy | isorzom | aezprosaon
2. | Roctna Tomer, Cref Frncalficer | gioaaom | adcpeosas

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Ms. Pooja Rastogi, Company Secretary

(Designated as KMP on 01.04.2019) 01.04.2019 BKHPR8220D

Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

During the year, Ms. Anupan Ban and Mr. Anand Kumar Singh cessed to be the Director of the
company w.e.f. 30" August 2019 and 4™ September 2019 respectively.

Ms. Deepak Sabhlok cessed to be the Chairman and Director with effect from 31 October
2019 due to his superannuation. The Board places on record its appreciation for their invaluable
contribution and guidance.

Mr. Surajit Dutta and Mr. Basant Kumar were appointed as Directors w.e.f. 5™ September 2019
and 19" September 2019 respectively.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company as on March 31, 2020 are: Mr. Nagangouda Hanumanthgouda Patil, Chief
Executive Officer, Ms. Rachna Tomar, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Pooja Rastogi, Company
Secretary of the company. The Company has appointed Ms. Rachna Tomar as Chief Financial
Officer in place of Ms. Kratika Gupta w.e.f 315 March 2020.

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

Ten meetings of the Board were held during the year under review as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Meetings of Board and its Powers, Rules, 2014 and DPE (Corporate
Governance) Guidelines 2010. For details of the meetings of the Board, please refer to the
corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report.

The Board Meetings were held 08.04.2019, 20.05.2019, 29.07.2019, 23.08.2019, 19.09.2019,
16.10.2019, 24.10.2019, 18.12.2019, 27.01.2020, 02.03.2020.The interval between the Board
Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Number of the Board meetings attended by the Directors during the financial year 2019-20 is as
follows:

Name of the Director Number of the Board meetings attended
Mr. Deepak Sabhlok (upto 31.10.2019) 717

Mr. Shyam Lal Gupta (w.e.f. 01.11.2019) 3/3

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal 10/10

Mr. Anand Kumar Singh (upto 04.09.2019) 4/4

Mr. Rajendra Singh Yadav (upto 19.09.2019

then w.e.f. 27.01.2020) 57
Mr. Basant Kumar (w.e.f. 19.09.2019) 6/6
Ms. Anupam Ban (upto 31.08.2019) 4/4

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Mr. Surajit Dutta (w.e.f. 05.09.2019) 6/6

Board Committees:

The Committees were reconstituted on September 19, 2019 and on January 27, 2020 and
dissolved with effect from March 2, 2020:

1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, has been exempted from the
appointment of Independent Directors on the Board and constitution of Board Committees viz.
Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) as per the gazetted notification
dated 5" July 2017 and 13" July 2017 respectively issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA).

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31,
2020 and of the Income & Expenditure Account of the Company for that period ended on
that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;
e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration by an independent director(s) and re-appointment:

The Company do not have any Independent Director during the Financial Year 2019-20.

Management and Discussion Analysis Report (MDAR):

The MDAR has been appended as Annexure — A forming part of this report.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Extract of Annual Return:

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is
appended as Annexure — B forming part of this report.

Report on Corporate Governance

The Report on Corporate Governance Report has been appended to this Report as Annexure
-C.

Director’s Observation and Comment’s for Financial Statements (Explanation for any
comments made by Auditors in their Report:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need
no further explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any
clarification / explanation.

AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditor:

M/s Sunil Singhal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory
Auditors, for the Financial Year 2019-20 vide CAG letter No. CA. V/COY/ Central Government,
IDHHL(1)699 dated 09.08.2019. They have confirmed by way of a written consent and
certificate as required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditor:

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s. Ravi Sahni & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 for conducting the audit of cost records
maintained by the Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc.

Secretarial Auditor:

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s. Sorabh Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries,
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2019-20.

Internal Auditor:

The Board of Directors appointed M/s. V.M. Arora & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal
Auditors for the financial year 2019-20, to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company.

Particulars of Intercorporate loans, guarantees or investments (Section 185 and 186):

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under
review.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year
with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction
with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the
Company on materiality of related party transactions. The same has been reflected in AOC-2
appended as Annexure — D forming part of this report.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company after

the closure of the Financial Year:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company had
occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

Rights Issue:
Date of Allotment No. of Equity Shares Name of Allottee
allotted (of Rs.10 each)
September 19,2019 6,00,00,000 Ircon International Limited
(Holding Company)

Conservation of energy, technology Absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A. Conservation of energy: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

B. Technology absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year
2019-20.

Risk Management:

The Company has robust business risk management framework capable of identifying business
risks, commensurate with its activities. In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does
not foresee any major threat/risk to the business of the Company.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Corporate Social Responsibility:

The requirement of constituting Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee pursuant to
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Particulars of Employees:

There is no employee who has drawn remuneration of Rs.60 Lakhs or more per annum or
Rs.5 Lakhs or more per month during the year 2019-20 in terms of section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of key
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Change in the nature of business:

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the financial year 2019-20.

Public Deposits:

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members
pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the requlators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and the company’s operations in future.

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013:

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to sexual
harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Vigil Mechanism:

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishing of a vigil
mechanism are not applicable to company.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Memorandum of Understanding:

Department of Public Enterprises has granted exemption to your Company from signing of MoU
with Ircon for the Financial Year 2019-20.

Bankers to the Company:

Indian Overseas Bank (IOB) having branch office at: First Floor, Palika Bhawan, R.K. Puram
Block B, Sector 13, R.K. Puram, New Delhi — 110066 is acting as the Sole Banking Partner for
the Company in terms of providing services as opening of current account, escrow account and
maintenance of fixed deposit (FD) in the name of the Company.

Acknowledgement:

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation received from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities and for the
valuable assistance and co-operation extended to the Company by the Ircon International
Limited, Lenders, Business Associates, Auditors of the Company and the valued Client of the
Company-National Highways Authority of India during the year under review.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed
services rendered by the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-
Shyam Lal Gupta
Chairman
DIN: 07598920
Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure-A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR)

Industry Structure and Developments:

Highway Projects awarded by NHAI are mostly Built, Operate and Transfer (BOT) projects or
Hybrid Annuity (HAM) Projects.

Hybrid Annuity (HAM) Projects are a game changer in the construction arena,
particularly in Road, in PPP model.

HAM’s a hybrid — a mix of the EPC (engineering, procurement and construction) and BOT
(build, operate, transfer) models. Under the EPC model, NHAI pays private players to lay
roads. The private player has no role in the road’s ownership, toll collection or maintenance
(it is taken care of by the government). HAM arose out of a need to have a better financial
mechanism for road development. HAM is a good trade-off, spreading the risk between
developers and the Government. Under BOT model, private players take the responsibility of
construction, maintenance and toll collection for a specified period of time say 20 years
(Construction period included). During this 20 years, all toll collection will be done by
Contractor and maintenance to be done by himself. After the expiry of 20 years, Ownership
of the road is handed over the NHAI In this model private player to invest all monies during
construction period and expected to recover these amount (along with the interest cost) from
the toll revenue. Private payer is always running a risk after huge initial cash out flow.

To overcome this risk and uncertainty, an alternate version of BOT model is BOT Annuity
model (HAM). In this annuity model, generally, toll revenue risk is taken by NHAI while the
contractor is paid a pre-fixed annuity for construction and maintenance of road.

HAM is the middle approach to trade off risks between developer and NHAI. By only
investing 60%, the developer or the Concessionaire Company is able to bear the project
construction costs and associated financial liabilities. Annuity payments ensures the
developer steady cash flow during maintenance period.

Strengths and Weaknesses:

Strengths:

¢ Infrastructure Projects of NHAI, under HAM model are financially more secure;

e Liquidity to the developer and the financial risk is shared by the government;

¢ Toll Revenue Risk, is borne by the Authority — NHAI, giving room for the developer to
focus on construction and maintenance of highway.

Weaknesses:

e Chances of Natural disadvantage are there.
e Construction Projects relating to highways face issues with respect to efficiency in
delivering timely output.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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Opportunities and Threats:

Opportunities:

In an annuity road project, there is no demand risk and the project SPV typically gets a fixed
semi-annual payment from NHAI. There is financial security which shall bring stability and
the related profitability.

Threats:

Since NHAI funds the HAM projects in 40:60 ratio, there exists a funding drawback for
getting funds on time for project completion and there may be delays in payment of annuities
that could lead to both liquidity mismatches and time value losses, thereby impacting the
ability to service debt on time.

FY 2020 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW: FINANCIAL

The following table gives an overview of the financial results of the Company: -

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars FY 2019-20
I Revenue:
Revenue from operations 39,283.50
Other income 113.66
Total Revenue 39,397.16
Il Expenses:
Operating Cost 39,283.48
Other Expenses 1.19
Total Expenses 39284.67
IV. | Profit Before Tax 112.49
Provision for Taxation
- Current/ Earlier years Tax/Deferred Tax 35.05
V. | Profit / (Loss) After Tax 77.44
VI Total Comprehensive Income (Comprising Profit
" | (Loss) & Other Comprehensive Income 77.44

FY 2020 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW: PHYSICAL

The works of Earthwork, SG, GSB, WMM, DBM layer, milling of existing BT surface, RE
Wall & RT Wall including Back filling, Major Bridges Foundation & Sub structure, Minor
Bridges, Flyover, VUP, LVUP, Pipe and Box Culverts & RCC Drain are in progress at
available fronts.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2019-20
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FY 2020 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW: HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company has appointed the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), CFO as deputed from the
holding Company Ircon International Limited and the Company Secretary of the Company
for handling the executive functions, financial affairs and mandatory compliances and
disclosures of the Company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-
Shyam Lal Gupta
Chairman
DIN: 07598920
Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE - B

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.

CIN

U45500DL2017GO0I317401

Registration Date

117 May, 2017

Name of the Company

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Category/Sub-category of the
Company

Government Company (Wholly-owned Subsidiary

Company of Ircon International Limited)

Address of the Registered office &
contact details

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017

Whether Listed or Unlisted
Company

Unlisted Company

Name, Address & contact details of
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if
any.

Not Applicable

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: (All

contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

the business activities

% to Total

(Through EPC Contractor)

48 (old NH-4) in the state of Karnataka

Construction Services: Highway Project

S. Name and Description of Main NIC Code of the Turnover of the
No. | Products/ Services Products/Services
Company
1. Rendering Services in the nature of
construction of Highway Project on NH- 42101 100

.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. | Name and CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicab
No. | Address of the Subsidiary Shares le
Company / Associate held Section
1 |lIrcon L45203DL1976G0OI008171 | Holding 100% * Sec
International Company 2(46)
Limited

* 100% Shares held by Ircon International Limited (Ircon) and its 8 Nominees.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
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A) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING:
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Category of

No. of Shares held at the

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

%

Shareholders beginning of the year, [As on 31-March-2020] Chang
[As on 01-April-2019] e
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of during
Total Total the
Shares Shares year
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF ) ) ) ) ) ) . ) )
b) Central Govt ] i i i i i i i i
c) State Govt(s) ] i i i i i i i i
d) Bodies Corp.# Nil 104050000 | 104050000 | 100% Nil 164050000 | 164050000 | 100% | 57.66%
e) Banks / FI i i i i i i i i
f) Any other i i i i i i i i
(2) Foreign i i i i i ) ) i
Total Nil 104050000 | 104050000 | 100% Nil 164050000 | 164050000 | 100% | 57.66%

Shareholding of
Promoters (A)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c¢) Central Gowvt

d) State Govi(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal

share capital upto °

1 lakh
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ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of ~ 1 lakh
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c¢) Others (specify)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D
R

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)D)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total Nil 104050000 | 104050000 | 100% Nil 164050000 | 164050000 | 100% | 57.66%
(A+B+C)
# Bodies Corporate: 100% Shareholding is with Body Corporate — Ircon International Limited and its 8 Nominees.
B) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:
SN | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of the %
Name of the year, as on 1°" April 2019| year, as on 31%' March 2020 Chang
No. of % of %of No. of % of %of ein
Shares Total Shares Shares Total Shares Share
Shares | Pledged Shares | Pledged holdin
of the / of the / g
Compa | encumb compan |encumb during
ny ered to y ered to the
total Total Year
shares Shares
1 |lrcon International 104050000 100% Nil 164050000 100% Nil 57.66%
Limited
Total 104050000 100% Nil 164050000 100% Nil 57.66%

Shareholding of Promoters: Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited — with 16,40,49,100 Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each i.e. Entire Shareholding held by Indian Promoters. The other 8 shareholders are holding shares “for and on behalf
of Ircon International Limited”.

C) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING:

SN

Particulars

Shareholding at the

Cumulative Shareholding

beginning of the Year

during the Year

No. of % of total

Shares Shares of
the

Company

No. of % of total
Shares Shares of the
Company
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=

At the Beginning of the Year 104050000 | 100%

| 104050000 | 100%

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment
[transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

Date of Allotment Reason

19.09.2019* Rights issue 60000000 100%

164050000 100%

3.

At the End of the Year 164050000 100%

164050000 100%

D) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS:
(OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the | Cumulative
beginning Shareholding during the
of the year Year
No. of % of total | No. of % of Total
Shares Shares of | Shares Shares of
the the
Company Company
1. | Atthe Beginning of the Year
2. | Date wise Increase [/ Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase NOT APPLICABLE
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
3. | Atthe End of the Year

E) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Shareholding of Each Director(s) and
Each Key Managerial Personnel$

Shareholding at the
beginning

of the Year, as on 31%

Cumulative
Shareholding during the
Year as on 31°% March
2020

March 2019
No. of % of total
Shares Shares of the
Company

No. of % of total
Shares Shares of the
Company

At the Beginning of the Year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):

At the End of the Year

NIL

* 200 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each are held by Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal and 100 Equity Shares each of Rs.10 each are held

by Mr. Shyam Lal Gupta, Mr. Surajit Dutta, Mr. Rajendra Singh Yadav and Mr. Basant Kumar, Directors of the Company “For
and on behalf of Ircon International Limited”

F) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued

but not due for payment.
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Particulars Secured Unsecured | Deposits Total

Loans Loans Indebtedness

excluding
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 130,00,00,000 - - 130,00,00,000
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
i) Interest accrued but not due - -
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition 139,22,00,000 - - 139,22,00,000
* Reduction - - - -
Net Change NIL
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 26,922,00,000 26,922,00,000
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
i) Interest accrued but not due - -

Total (i+ii+iii)

26,922,00,000

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND / OR MANAGER:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

1. | Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

n

Stock Option

3. | Sweat Equity

4. | Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. | Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

NOT APPLICABLE

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration @

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

1 Independent Directors
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Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2) $

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

HED Tl

NOT APPLICABLE

@ IrconDHHL had five Part-time Directors during the financial year 2019-20, nominated on the Board by the holding
company; do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors.

C.REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD):

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration # Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CS CFO Total
1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 10,57,581 4,23,093 | 12,26,700 | 27,07,374
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission
- as % of profit - - -
others, specify... - - -
5 Others, please specify
- Performance linked incentive (PRP) - 1,29,082 1,29,082
- Retirement benefits (Pension, PF) 1,29,910 50,774 3,25,078 5,05,762
Total 11,87,490 4,73,867 | 16,80,860 | 33,42,217
VI. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of Brief Authority Appeal made,
the Description | Compounding | [RD/ if any (give
Companies fees imposed NCLT/ Details)
Act COURT]
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

* Form MGT-14 related to appointment of Internal Auditor for FY 2019-20 as per section 177 read with 179(3) of the
Companies Act 2013 was not filed with the stipulated time. It may be noted that the application for condonation of delay
was filed in Form CG-1 in FY 2020-21

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-
Shyam Lal Gupta
Date: 19.08.2020 Chairman
Place: New Delhi DIN: 07598920
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ANNEXURE = C

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values
aimed at enhancing an organization's wealth generating capacity. The Company being a
government entity focuses on adherence to “Corporate Governance Measures” being
adopted for effective business functioning and conduct of transactions in a transparent
manner. Our corporate governance framework ensures effective engagement with our
management and our stakeholders and helps us evolve with changing times.

1. Company Philosophy and Governance:

IrconDHHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), has since
its inception focused on adhering to the principals of integrity, accountability, adequate
disclosures and compliances, transparency in corporate decision-making and actions.
Procedures and systems have been adopted and been put in place, to ensure timely
reporting to varied statutory authorities and streamlining of corporate processes.
Functional based roles have been assigned amongst the personnel for managing the
corporate work and governance mechanisms in line with the Holding Company, IRCON,
have been internalised by the Company.

Good Governance is practised by having effective control over the affairs of the company
in the interest of the Company shareholders and other stakeholders.

2. Board of Directors
2.1 Composition of Board: -

As on March 31, 2020, our Board comprised five members, consisting of all directors
appointed by the holding Company ,Ircon International Limited (‘IRCON’) pursuant to Article
54 of the Articles of Association (AOA) of the Company:-

SI. | Directors Date of Date of
\[o} Appointment Cessation

1. |Mr. Shyam Lal Gupta Part-time 01.11.2019 -
[DIN 07598920] Chairman

2. | Mr. Deepak Sabhlok Part-time 11.05.2017 31.10.2019
[DIN 03056457] Chairman

3. | Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal | Part-time Director 11.05.2017 -
[DIN 05308809]

4. | Mr. Anand Kumar Singh | Part-time Director 11.05.2017 04.09.2019
[DIN 07018776]

5. |Mr. Rajendra Singh | Part-time Director 11.05.2017 19.09.2019
Yadav [DIN 07752915] 27.01.2020 -

6. | Mr. Basant Kumar Part-time Director 19.09.2019 -
[DIN 08556555]

7. | Mr. Surajit Dutta Part-time Director 05.09.2019 -
[DIN 06687032]

8. | Ms. Anupam Ban Part-time Director 11.05.2017 30.08.2019

[DIN 07797026]

2.2 Board Meetings: -
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Board Meetings are convened in line with the provisions stated in the Companies Act, 2013
and the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Guidelines on
Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises. To address any
specific urgent need, meetings are sometimes also called at a shorter notice. In case of
exigencies or urgency, resolutions are also passed by circulation. The meetings of the Board
of Directors are normally held at the Company’s registered office at New Delhi.

During the financial year 2019-20, ten (10) Board Meetings were held. The first meeting was
held on April 8, 2019 and subsequent meetings were held on May 2, July 29, August 23,
September 19, October 16, October 24, December 18, 2019, January 27, March 2, 2020.
The maximum interval between any two meetings during this period was 88 days.

The table below shows number of Board meetings attended by Directors and attendance at
last AGM. It also shows other directorships/ committee memberships held by them during
the year 2019-20:

Name of the Meeting No. of Attendance Directorship in other Number of
Director held Board at the AGM Public Companies Committee positions
during Meetings (held on held in other Public
respectiv attended  26.08.2019) Con?pames
S Chairman Member
of
Directors
Mr. Shyam Lal 3 3 NA 8 - 3
Gupta (w.e.f [Ircon, CEWRL, CERL,
01.11.2019) MCRL, IrconPBTL,
BRPL, IrconSGTL,
IrconVKEL]
Mr. Deepak 7 7 Yes NA NA NA
Sabhlok
(upto 31.10.2019)
Mr. Ashok Kumar 10 10 Yes 5 3 2
Goyal [ISTPL, IrconiSL,
IrconPBTL,
IrconSGTL, and
IrconVKEL]
Mr. Anand Kumar 4 4 Yes NA NA NA
Singh (upto
04.09.2019)
Mr. Rajendra Singh 7 5 Yes 3 - 1
Yadav (upto [IrconPBTL,
19.09.2019 then IrconSGTL and
w.e.f. 27.01.2020) IrconVKEL]
Ms. Anupam Ban 4 4 Yes NA NA NA
(upto 30.08.2019)
Mr. Basant Kumar 6 6 NA NIL NIL NIL
(w.e.f. 19.09.2019)
Mr. Surajit Dutta 6 6 NA 3 1 2
(w.e.f. 05.09.2019) [IrconlISL, IrconSGTL,
and IrconVKEL]
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Notes:

1. Ms. Anupam Ban cessed to be the director of the company w.e.f 30.08.2019 and 100 shares
held by her as nominee shareholder on behalf of Ircon International Limited were endorsed to
Mr. Basant Kumar.

(Mr. Basant Kumar cessed to be the director of the company w.e.f 01.08.2020 and 100 shares held by
him as nominee shareholder on behalf of Ircon International Limited were endorsed to Mr.
B.Mugunthan).

2. Mr. Anand Kumar Singh, cessed to be director of the Company w.e.f 04.09.2019 and 100
shares held by him as nominee shareholder on behalf of Ircon International Limited were
endorsed to Mr. Surajit Dutta

3. Mr. Deepak Sabhlok cessed to be chairman and director in the company w.e.f 31.10.2019

4. The number of Directorships is within the maximum limit of: 20 Companies (out of which
maximum 10 public companies) under the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Directors are not related to each other.

6. Directors do not have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company.

7. The Directorships / Committee memberships are based on the latest disclosure received from
Directors.

8. Committee memberships of Audit Committees of all Public Limited Companies have been
considered.

9. The number of committee memberships of directors is within the maximum limit of ten
including the permitted limit of five chairmanships under the DPE Corporate Governance
Guidelines, 2010 (DPE Guidelines). Only Audit Committee is to be counted for the said limit.

10. Full names of Companies referred:

a) lrcon — Ircon International Limited

b) IrconISL — Ircon Infrastructure Services Limited

¢) ISTPL — Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited

d) IrconPBTL - Ircon PB Tollway Limited

e) lrconSGTL — Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

f) CERL — Chhattisgarh East Railway Limited

g) CEWRL - Chhattisgarh East-West Railway Limited

h) MCRL — Mahanadi Coal Railway Limited

i) lrconVKEL — Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited
i) IrconDHHL - Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
k) BRPL- Bastar Railway Private Limited

3. Committees of Board

The Board had two committees in the financial year under the review: Audit Committee
and Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

3.1 Composition:

As on 2"Y March 2020, the Committees comprised the following members:-

Name of Director Audit Committee Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Rajendra Singh Yadav (w.e.f. Member Chairman

27.01.2020)

Mr. Basant Kumar Member Member

(w.e.f. 27.01.2020)

Mr. Surajit Dutta Chairman Member

(w.e.f. 27.01.2020)

Company Secretary is the Secretary to these Committees.
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Note: The Committees were reconstituted on September 19, 2019 and on January 27, 2020 and
dissolved with effect from March 2, 2020

3.2 Meetings and Attendance:

During the financial year 2019-20, six (6) meetings of the Audit Committee and no
meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held. The first meeting was
held on May 2, 2019 and subsequent meetings on July 29, August 23, October 24,
December 18, 2019, and January 27, 2020 respectively. The details of the meetings of
Audit Committee attended by the members are as under:-

Members of Committee Audit Committee

Meetings held | Meetings
during their | attended
tenure
Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal 6 6
(Chairman w.e.f 19.09.2019 to 27.01.2020)
Mr. Anand Kumar Singh 3 3
(Chairman w.e.f. 18.07.2018 to 04.09.2019)
Ms. Anupam Ban 3 3
(Member w.e.f. 18.07.2018 to 30.08.2019)
Mr. Rajendra Singh Yadav 3 2
(w.e.f 18.07.2018 to 19.09.2019 then w.e.f.
27.01.2020)
Mr. Basant Kumar 3 3
(w.e.f. 19.09.2019)
Mr. Surajit Dutta 3 3
(w.e.f. 19.09.2019)

Remuneration of Directors:

None of the Directors draw any remuneration and Sitting fees for attending the Meetings
from the Company.

General Meetings:

Date, time and location where the last three General Meetings alongwith details of
Special Resolutions passed are as under:

Financial Date of

Time Location/

Year Meeting Venue Special Business
2017-18 1t June, 2017 1500 C-4, District | ¢  To amend object clause
(1°' EGM) Hours Centre, of Memorandum of
Saket, New Association of the
Delhi- Company
110017 e Borrowing Powers of the

Company in excess of
Paid-up capital and free
reserves under Section
180 (1)(c) of companies
Act, 2013

2017-18 15" January, 1230 C-4, District | ¢ To increase in authorised
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(2" EGM) | 2018 Hours Centre, share capital and
Saket, New subsequent alteration of
Delhi- memorandum of
110017 association of the
Company
e Alteration of Alteration of
the Company
2017-18 27" 1330 C-4, District
(15 AGM) | September, Hours Centre, NIL
2018 Saket, New
Delhi-
110017
2018-19 26" August, 1530 C-4, District | e To ratify the remuneration
(2" AGM) | 2019 Hours Centre, of the Cost Auditors of the
Saket, New Company-M/s Ravi Sahni
Delhi- & Co., Cost Accountants,
110017 for the financial year
2019-20
6. Shareholding as on March 31, 2020:
Ircon International Limited 16,40,49,100 99.99
(Holding Company)
Ashok Kumar Goyal* 200 Negligible
Shyam Lal Gupta* 100 Negligible
Yogesh Kumar Misra* 100 Negligible
Surajit Dutta* 100 Negligible
Parag Verma* 100 Negligible
Subhash Chand* 100 Negligible
Basant Kumar* 100 Negligible
Rajendra Singh Yadav* 100 Negligible
TOTAL 16,40,50,000 100

*Nominee shareholders holding shares on behalf of Ircon International Limited.

7. Disclosures and Statutory Compliances: -

Adequate Disclosures pertaining to director’s interest, related party transactions, maintenance
of statutory registers have been taken and placed periodically before the Board of Directors to
take informed decisions, with the Board following a clear policy of specific delegation and
authorisation of designated officers to handle the business matters. MCA Filings with respect to
disclosures, intimations, allotments and appointments have been made in a time bound manner

with no pending matters.
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8. CEO/CFO Certification

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance Officer have certified in writing with respect to
the truth and fairness of the financial statements, due compliances, and financial reporting
which was placed before the Board of Directors (placed as Annexure — C1 to this Report).

9. Certificate for Compliance with Corporate Governance Guidelines

DPE Guidelines, 2010 prescribes a certificate to be obtained from the Statutory Auditors or the
Practicing Company Secretary for corporate governance guidelines followed by the Company
(Chapter 8: Report, Compliance and Schedule of Implementation — Clause 8.2: Compliance).

The said certificate was obtained from the Practising Company Secretaries (PCS), Arun Kumar
Gupta and Associates, Company Secretaries, having office at 1005, Roots Tower, Plot No. 7,
District Centre, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi — 110092, for the Financial Year 2019-20, and is attached
herewith as Annexure — C2.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-
(Shyam Lal Gupta)
Chairman
DIN: 07598920

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE -C1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)
CERTIFICATION

We have reviewed the Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit &
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year 2019-20 and to the best of our
knowledge and belief: -

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statement that might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company‘s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(i) These are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company‘s General
Code of Conduct as agreed to be followed by the Directors and Senior Management of the
Company.

(iv) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditor’s deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to rectify these deficiencies.

(v) We have indicated to the Auditor any changes in Accounting Policies that may have been
effected during the year, and that the same have been disclosed in the Notes to the Financial
Statements; and

(vi) There was no instance of fraud of which we are aware nor there has been involvement of the
Management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Mr. Nagangouda Hanumanthgouda Patil Ms. Rachna Tomar
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Chief Financial Officer(CFO)

Date: 24.06.2020
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE = C2

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
UNDER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES OF DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC

To

The Members of

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
C-4, District Centre, Saket,

New Delhi — 110017

In respect of the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance for the year ended 31
March, 2020, by Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited, a Government Company under
section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding sections 2(18) and 617 of the
Companies Act, 1956), as required by the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE).

We have studied the Report on Corporate Governance of the said Company as approved by its
Board of Directors. We have also examined the relevant records and documents maintained by
the Company and furnished to us for our review in this regard.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination was limited to review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

We state there has been no investor grievance during the year against the Company as per the
records maintained by the Company.

We further comment that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and on the basis of our review and according to
the information and explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the
mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance in all material respects as required by the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE),
except related to appointment of Independent Directors and submission of Quarterly Reports as
per the provisions of DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines, 2010. However it is understood that
as the Company is constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) got exemption for appointing
Independent Directors, submitting Quarterly report and other Compliance of Corporate
Governance Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), vide its O.M. dated
11" July, 2019 and 8™ July, 2014, which was also confirmed by its holding Company i.e. Ircon
International Limited vide its e-mail dated 28" January, 2020. Subsequently Company revoked its
Audit Committee & Nomination & Remuneration Committee w.e.f 02" March, 2020.

It is further stated that the aforesaid opinion is based upon the submissions made by the
Company with supporting documents and correspondence files and the secretarial and other
statutory records maintained by the Company.

For ARUN KUMAR GUPTA &ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-

(Arun Kumar Gupta)
FCS- 5551

CP No- 5086
UDIN:-F005551B000579951

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14.08.2020
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ANNEXURE - D

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the

Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto for the financial year 2019-20

Salient terms of
Duration of the | the Contracts or | Date(s) of Amount
Nature of contracts :
Sr. contracts or | Arrangements or | approval by paid as
or arrangements or . d
No. ; arrangements | Transactions the Board, if |advances,
transactions . . . ) . -
or transactions | including the | any: if any:
value, if any
EPC Agreement The Contract has
(For Appointing been executed for
Ircon International a value of
Limited as EPC Estimated Rs.1026.96 Crores
Contractor for Duration: 30 inclusive GST @ February
) . : 0
execution of project | )" o 12%. 20,2018 & 9" | NIL (As
1. | works of “Six Laning .
(Period for November, on Date)
of Davanagere . Works expenses
. Construction by ) 2017
Haveri from km EPC Contractor) paid to IRCON for
260+000 to km the same during
338+923 of NH- FY:19-20 amounts
48(0ld NH-4 ) in the to Rs.37185.90
state of Karnataka” Lacs.
IrconDHHL has
signed a Lease
Agreement with
IRCON on 9™
5 Llfast? Agreerfnent Three Years August 2018 fora | - NIL (As
- | (Rentfor Use o (2018 to 2021) | Period of 3 years on Date)
Office Premises) with effect from
15.05.2018 @ °
19,305/- p.m. plus
GST

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-
Shyam Lal Gupta
Chairman
DIN:07598920

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE - E

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

IRCON DAVANGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

Plot No. C-4, District Centre Saket, New Delhi -110017.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by IRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway
Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the IRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2020, generally
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by IRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2020, according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there
under; (Not Applicable to the Company)

iii. =~ The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; (Not
Applicable to the Company)

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company during the
period);

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
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a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company).

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; (Not applicable to the Company).

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company).

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable to the
Company).

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company).

f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; (Not applicable to the Company).

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company)and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; (Not applicable to the Company).

vi.  We further report that, having regards to the compliance system prevailing in the
company, on examination of the documents provided by the company, the company has
complied with the following laws applicable to the company:

a. The Building and other Construction workers (Regulation of Employment and
Conditions of Services) Act, 1996;
b. Building and other Construction workers welfare Cess Act, 1996;
Environmental Laws, as applicable;
Labour Laws, as applicable.

o o

We have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standard I and Secretarial Standard Il
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) were applicable to the Company
for the period under review.

We further report:

That the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with only Non-Executive
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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That adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent adequately in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the
management, were taken unanimously.

That as per the explanations given to us and the representations made by the Management and
relied upon by us there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

That during the period under review, as explained and represented by the management, the
company has allotted 6,00,00,000 shares (the breakup is shown under table no. 1 below) during
the financial year as specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Tableno.1
Right Issues No. of Shares | No. of shares | Date of
subscribed & paid up allotted Allotment
I Equity Issue of 6,00,00,000 19.09.2019
6,00,00,000 shares

For Sorabh Jain & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Sorabh Jain

Proprietor

M. No. A45034

C.P. No. 16489
UDIN:-A045034B000585772

Place: Delhi
Dated: 17.08.2020
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ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,

The Members

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

Plot No. C-4, District Centre Saket, New Delhi -110017.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

Wherever required, We have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Since disruptions caused by Government imposed lockdown and social distancing norms being
implemented in the country due to COVID-19, we have only been able to examine the records from the
system, and further original / physical records and supporting documents could not be verified. The
management has provided us an access to the scanned copies of the various documents through mail
which further been removed from the cloud by the company.

For Sorabh Jain & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Sorabh Jain

Proprietor

M. No. A45034

C.P. No. 16489
UDIN:-A045034B000585772

Place: Delhi
Dated:17.08.2020
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
C —4, District Centre

Saket, New Delhi (IN} - 116 017

REPORYT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI
HIGHWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the period
then ended and Notes to the Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory informztion (herein after referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”.

in our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalcne Financial Statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013
{("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the acccunting
principles ganerally accepted in Indis, of the State of Affairs of the Campany ss at March 31, 2020, its
profits, changes in equity and cash Aows for the period ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPIMNICH

We conducted our audi in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under Secticn
143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 11
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our repoit. We are
independent of the company in accordarnce with the code of ethics issued by the institute of Charterag
Accountants of india together with the ethicai requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
stafements under the provisicrs of tne Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained s sufficient and appropriatz to provide a basis for
our cpinion.

=

Bape L of 1%
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS & MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

The Company’s net worth is not negative and the borrowings from banks, financial institutions or any
other sources (if any) have not been classified by the lenders as non — performing assets during the period.
Hence this clause is not applicable on the company. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Further, we draw attention to Note No. 34 — “Covid — 19 Disclosure” of the financial statements, which is
of such importance that it is fundamental / relevant to user’s understanding of the financial statement.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

In addition to above, we draw attention to Note No. 16 — “Other Income” and Note No. 33 wherein the
company in accordance with Ind AS 1 — “Presentation of Financial Statements”, has netted off Interest
Income on Mobilization Advance given to IRCON International Limited — INR 416.05 Lacs and Interest Costs
on Mobilization Advance received from NHAI — INR 341.16 Lacs. We further state that the terms of give
and take of mobilization advance and interest thereon are not prejudicial to the interests of the company.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of '
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the

key audit matters —

[ Key Audit Matter
1. Revenue recognition in terms of Ind AS 115 -
“Revenue from contracts with customers”

How our audit addressed the matter W

Ind AS 115 prescribes five steps revenue
recognition model. The Company recognizes
revenue for a performance obligation satisfied
over time after estimating its progress towards

Our audit procedures included considering the
appropriateness of the Company's revenue
recognition accounting policies and assessing
compliance with the policies in terms of the
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ARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

[ The recognition of revenue requires assessments
and judgments to be made on changes in work
scope, claims (compensation, rebates etc.) and
other payments to the extent performance
obligation is satisfied.

The company measures the performance
obligation by applying input method. In the
contracts where performance obligation cannot be
measured by input method, the output method is
applied, which faithfully depicts the Company’s
performance towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

During order fulfilment, contractual obligations
may need to be reassessed. In addition, change
orders or cancellations have to be considered. As a
result, total estimated project costs may exceed
total contract revenues and therefore require
immediate recognition of the expected loss.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement,
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts
and circumstances when applying each step of the
model to contracts with their customers.

For details refer Note 23 — Service Concession
Agreements and Note 30 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements.

We evaluated the design of internal controls
relating to implementation of the new revenue
accounting standard (last financial year) and
changes required in terms of change in estimated
project cost and changes in contract clauses /
conditions with respect to macro environmental
changes (current year).

We scrutinized the agreement with NHAI and
tested the operating effectiveness of the internal
control, relating to identification of the distinct
performance obligations and satisfaction of
performance obligations. We further examined
costs included within WIP balances and tested
their recoverability through comparing the net
realizable values as per the agreements with
estimated cost to complete. We further examined
the amounts of Financial Asset recognized under
the Service Concession Agreement with NHA| and
estimated the recoverability based on completion
of milestones and taking into account the
receivables due from NHALI.

We performed following substantive procedures
OVer revenue recognition with specific focus on
whether there is single performance obligation or
multiple performance obligations in the contract
and whether the performance obligation is being
satisfied over the period of time or at a point in
time:
* Read, analysed and identified the distinct
performance obligations in these contracts.
* Compared these performance obligations with
that identified and recorded by the Company. :
* Considered the terms of the contracts to verify
the transaction price used to allocate to separate
performance obligations.
¢ Checked whether the performance obligation is
being satisfied over the period of time or at a
point in time
* Performed analytical procedures for
reasonableness of revenues disclosed. _

i
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OTHER MATTERS

Scope limitation due to COVID 19

In view of the disruptions caused by Government imposed lockdown and social distancing norms being
implemented in the country due to nCOVID — 19, we have only been able to examine the accounts mostly

from the system and original books of account and supporting documents underlying these financial L
statements could not be verified in majority of the cases. The management has provided us with the
scanned copies of various documents which were essential for the purpose our audit.

We wish to highlight that due to the COVID 19 induced restrictions on physical movement and strict
timelines, the audit team could not properly visit the office of the Company for undertaking the required
audit procedures as prescribed under ICAl issued Standards on Auditing, including but not limited to:
Inspection, observation, examination and verification of the original documents / files;
Verification of the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls;
Verification of the title deeds of the immovable properties of the company;

Observation with regard to access controls and data security;

Any other audit procedure which require physical presence of the audit team.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON ¢

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we e uired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
' A\
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUD.ITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Page 5 of 18

; n Palace, 19 Veer Savarkar Block, Shakarpur, Delhi - 110 092
Phone / Fax: +91-11-4244 4225 2202 1201, Mobile: +91- 98102 91779, 99589 97;329
Email: sunil.singhal.ca@gmail.com, singhal.sunil.88@gmail.com, Website.: www.casunilsinghal.com

AHMEDABAD | BHUBANESWAR| CHANDIGARH | FARIDABAD | GHAZIABAD | JAIPUR | LUCKNOW | MUMBAI | RAMGARH | RANCH | REWA | SHIMLA [SURAT4 4
Dnss Fi

Guprat Dnssa Lt Haryera LRt Prasost Rzzstar thrar Prazast Earamshn Srakbars Sratktars MazhyiFrazzst  Hemaczhal Fracesk Duprit



I3

ghail
yunil & Associates

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative ma"ceriafity and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements. '
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8. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

h.  We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

~ and where applicable, related safeguards.

i.  From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.
(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

(8)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub — section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in Annexure — “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid standalone financial statements have been kept by the company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of
the standalone financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; _

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure - “B”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: _
“In view of the Government Notification No. GSR 463 (E) dated June 5%, 2015, government
companies are exempt from the applicability of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.”

D A
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
b. The company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Ed ucation
and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As per Directions / Sub directions issued by the C&AG of India under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act 2013, refer to our report in Annexure — “C”,

For SINGHAL SUNIL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN  008030N

CASUNIL SINGHAL
PARTNER

M. No. 086904
UDIN - 20086904AAAAHRA699

Date : 24.06.2020
Place : New Delhij
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY
LIMITED

(Referred toin Paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report
to the members of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVER] HIGHWAY LIMITED of even date)

We report that —

In respect of Company's Fixed Assets —

a.  The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitat_ive
details and situation of fixed assets.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Fixed Assets have been
physically verified by the management in a phased manner at reasonable intervals, and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. Further, there is a regular program
of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company
and nature of its business.

c. The company does not own any immovable properties during the period of audit.

In respect of Inventories -

The Company does not hold any inventories during the period of reporting; hence reporting under
paragraph 3 (i) of the order is not applicable.

According to information and explanation given to us by the management and records produced
before us, the company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability pa rtnerships or other parties covered in the register required under Section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not
applicable.
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5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management
and records produced before us, the company has not accepted any deposits from public and
hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,
2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6. The Central Government of India has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for activities of the company and accordingly the company
has maintained the required cost records at the Corporate Office of the company. However, no
separate cost accounts are maintained.

7 In respect of statutory dues —

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our ,
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, goods
and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material

- statutory dues applicable to the company have been generally regularly deposited during the
year by the company with the appropriate authorities.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31,2020 fora
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records of
the company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
no outstanding dues to any financial institutions or banks or any government or any debenture
holders during the year, Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (viii) of the order is not
applicable. However, the company has taken a loan of INR 139.22 Crores from its holding
company, IRCON International Limited (CIN — L45203DL1976G01008171) during the year ended
31* March, 2020 and the closing balance of such loan as at 31 March, 2020 is INR 269.22 Crores.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

» Associates

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (ix) of the
order is not applicable. However, the company has accepted a Term Loan of INR 139.22 Crores
from its holding company, IRCON International Limited (CIN — L45203DL1976G0I008171) during
the year ended 31% March, 2020.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year and during the course of our audit.

In view of the Government Notification No. GSR 463 (E) dated June 5t 2015, government
companies are exempt from the applicability of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (xi) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as specified in Nidhi Rules, 2014 and accordingly reporting
under paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. '

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
However, the company has raised a total share capital of INR 60 Crores from IRCON International
Limited (CIN — L45203DL197GGO!008171).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
Or persons connected with them, within the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.
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16. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For SINGHAL SUNIL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN  008030N

UNIL SINGHAL
PARTNER
M. No. 086504
UDIN - 20086904AAAAHR4699

Date : ‘ 24.06.2020
Place : New Delhi
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY ;

LIMITED
(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report
to the members of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED of even date) '

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of The
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI
HIGHWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31% 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial L
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAr). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to &xpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the '
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of The
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respeéts.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material ’
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial cqntrol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that-

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future years are subject to the risk that the internal financial control '
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the polici ocedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2020:

During the year, the company has followed the system of processing its accou nting transactions through
the Accounting Software ‘Tally ERP’. All the vouchers are approved manually and the same are posted
in the books of account maintained in the Tally Software only. However, there is a possibility of posting
of entries in back date within the financial year. Accordingly, the Company needs to improve the
Internal Control System in this respect.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects / possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company as at March 31 2020, and these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the
standalone financial statements of the company.

For SINGHAL SUNIL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN  008030N
/

CA_SUNIL SINGHAL
PARTNER
M. No. 086904 Date : 24.06.2020
UDIN - 20086904AAAAHR4699 Place : New Delhi
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ANNEXURE “C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
(Referred to in Paragraph 3 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report to the members

of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED of even

date)

Replies to the Directions issued by Comptroller & Auditor General of India to the Statutory Auditors under Section

143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31% 2020

¢

SN

PARTICULARS

REPLY

1.

Whether the company has a system in place to
process all the accounting transaction through IT
system? If yes, the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes, during the year, the Company has followed the system
of processing its accounting transactions through the
Accounting Software ‘Tally ERP’. All the vouchers are
approved manually and the same are posted in the books of
account maintained in the Tally Software only.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver / write off of debts /loans
/ interest etc. made by a lender to the Company
due to the Company’s inability to repay the loan?
If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

During the year, there is no instance of any restructuring of
an existing loan or cases of Waiver / write off of debts /
loans / interest etc. made by a lender to the company.

Whether funds received / receivable for specific
schemes from Central / State agencies were
properly accounted for / utilized as per its terms
and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

We have been informed that the Company has neither
received nor any such funds are receivable by the Company
for specific schemes from Central / State agencies for the
year 2019 - 20.

For SINGHAL SUNIL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN

PARTNER
M. No. 086904

008030N ,

d
!

FRN. CJ8030N / %

SINGHAL

UDIN - 20086904AAAAHR4699

Date
Place

24.06.2020
New Delhi
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED for
the year ended March 31%, 2020 in accordance with the directions / sub-directions issued by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that
we have complied with all the directions / sub-directions issued to us.

For SINGHAL SUNIL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN  008030N !

PARTNER -

M. No. 086904
Date : 24.06.2020
Place : New Delhi
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As per our Report of even date atrached

For Singhal Sunil & Associates
Chartered Aceountants
FRN - DOBD3ON

CA Sunil Signhal

Partuer
M. Mo, 086904

Place ; New Delhi

Date 24-06- 2020
UDIN : 2008630HAAAHRA699

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U43500DL201 TGOT317401
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March 2020
{Rs. in Laces)
Particulars Naote No. As at 31st March 2020 As at 315t March 2019
I. |ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
{#) Property, Plant and equipment 3 030 -
(b) Financial Assets
- Others 4 2547431 1342591
ie} Deferved Tax Assets { Net) 5 13.76 2730
Total Non-Current Assets 2548837 1345330
—_—— —let
2 |Current Assets
(a}  TFinancial Assets f
(i) Trade Receivables 61 792.02 10,099 60
() Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 219:17 134.24
(1) Others : 16,815 61 113
(b} Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 67850 336.73
(c) Other Current Assets 3 6,137.11 5.855.34
Total Current Assets 246424 [9.425 04
Taoral Assets 50,130.78 32,878.34
I [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 9 16.,405.00 10,405.00
{b) Other Equity 10 354.82 277.38
Total Equity 16.759.82 10,682 38
2 |Liabilities
{i) [Non-Current Liabiliries
(a)  Financial Liabilities 11
(1) Barrowings A I 26.922 00 13.000.00
Total Non-Current Liabilities 26,922 .00 13.000.00
(ii) [Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 12
(1] Trade payables 121
- Micro, Small and Medium Fnterprises - 0.t
= Others 2,534.87 393
(i) Other Financial Liakalities 13 S10.62 141.85
{b) Other Current Liabihties 14 340347 Q04808
Total Current Liabiliries 0,448 96 919394
Total Equity and Liabilities 50,130.78 32,878.34
[
1L | Summary of Sigmficant Accounting policies 1-2 i
[V, Notes forming part of financial statements 3-35

For and an hehalf of

Shyam Lal Gupta

Director
DIN-07598920

QN
Niﬁl}da
Hanumanthgouda Patil
Chief Executive
Offtcer

ard of Directors

Rajendra Singh Yadav 1
Director Director
DIN=-07752915 DIN-0668T032

2

Potja Rastogi
Company Secretary

achna Tomar
Chief Financial Officer
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TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL201 7GOT3 17401
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars NoteNis: For the period ended31st | Far the Period ended 315t
March 2020 March 2019
1. |Revenue:
Eevenue from operations 15 39283 50 31,270.52
11, |Other income 1a 113 56 17013
[ Total Income (1 + 1) 3930714 31,440.45
[V, |Expenses:
Project Expenses 17 3749130 3084631
Empleyce benefits expenses 18 33.60 18:74
Finance costs 19 1738440 24897
Deepreciation, amortization and impairment 20 D12 =
Other Expenses 17 1.12 050
Total Expenses (IV). 39.284.67 31,114.52
V. |Profit Before exceptional items and Tax (IT1 - [V) 11249 325.93
V1. |Exceptional items e
VIL |Profit before tax (V + VT) 11249 32593
VIIT. |Tax expenses:
(1) Current tax
- For the Period 2142 75,69
= For carlier vears (net) - #
(2) Deferred tax (net) 13.63 3593
Total Tax Expense 3505 62
IX [Profit for the period from continuing operation (VII - VIIL} 7744 21431
X her Comprehensive Income
A (1) Ttiems that will not be reclassified to profit or less ) Z
(ii) [ncome Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit or -
loss -
B. (i) [tems that will be reclassificd to profit or loss = =
(1) Income Tax relating to Ttems that will be reclassified o profit o1 - N
loss
X1 Total Comprehensive Incomlefnr the period (IX +X} (Comprising 77.44 21431
profit and other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax)
XII' |Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Continumg Operation)
(1] Basic 21 .06 034
(2) Dilured 0.06 034
Face Value Per Equity Share 10.00 10.00
X1 |Summary of Significant Accounting policies 1-2
IV |Maotes forming part of financial statcments 5-35
As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Singhal Sunil & Associates (’
Chartered Accountagts ! A -
; L iy Shyam Lal Gupra Rajendra Singh Yadav Surajit Dutta
™~ Director Directar Diirector
;:-J DIN-OT598920 DIN-07752915 DIN-0068T7032
C A48 031
Parmer
M No 086904 Q\\{;\ N
Nagm_ounﬁp_. =
Hamimanthgouda Panl Rachna Tomar Ploja Rastogi
Place - New Delhi Chief Executive Officer Chief E itic Company Secretary

Date: 24-06-2020




TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERT HIGHWAY LINITED

CIN- L43500DL2017TGOI31 T4M

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315t MARCH 2020

{Rs. in Laes)

Particulars

As at 3st March 2020

As at 31st March 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation 11249 33503
Adjustment for 2
Imterest Income - 4542 -326.43
Depreciation, amoruzauon and inpaiment 01z &
Tmterest Expenses and Other Firance Cost 209956 405.27
Operating Profit before Current /Non-Current Assets and Liabilities (1) 1,757.35 404.77
Adjustment for
Decrense (Tnorease) in Trade Recervables 9.307.58 -10.099.60
| Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assers = 1204840 -13,180.24
Decrease [ (Increasa) i Other Current Financial Assers - 1681385 -1 13
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets 2.716:24 -5 85290
{Decrease) / Increase m Trade Pavables 2.528.84 -233 98
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Current Financaal Liabilives 36876 140,58
(Decreasz) / Increase i Other Current Liabilines - 564460 5,047.79
Total of Working Capiral Changes 12) - 1958543 - 2317948
Cash generated from operation [1+2) - 17.328.08 - 22.774.71
Inzoms Tax Paidinet of cefund) - 363,20 - 41242
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES [A) - 18,191.25 - 23.187.13
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase / Proceeds of Property, Plant and Equipment - 042 =
Interest Received 43419 32841
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B} 453,77 10,726
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan From IRCON 1392200 13,000,00
Equity Shares issued during the year ,000.00 -
[nterest Expenses and Other Finanee Cost - 209956 =405.27
NET CASH FRONM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 17,822.44 12,594.75
Effect of Exchange difterences on translation of Foreign Curency Cash & Cash o s
Equivalents
NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C+D) 5493 134,01
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (OPENING) (E) 134.24 023
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING) * (F) 21017 134.24
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE] IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT [F=E) 34.95 13401

Note. 1 Cash flows are repocted usme the indirect method, whereby profit / (1oss) before wx is adjusted or the effects of ransactions of non-cash nature and any defercals or aceruals of past or future cash

receipts ar paymants. The cash flows from operatng, wvesung and financing actviues of the Company sre segrezated based on the available imformation

2. Effective April 1, 2017, the ¢ampany has adopred the amendment to Tnd-AS 7, which requira the enities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements 1o evaluate chanies in liabilities
£ of 4 reconciliation berween the opening and closing balances m the balance
of amendment did not have any material effect on the financial statements,

arising from financing

cuvities, including both changes ansimg from cash flows and

sh ch

ung

sheet for lizbihties ansing from Dnancing activities, to meet the 4

3. Fizures in brackets reprasent outflow of cash

4 Figures of the previous year have besn regrouped ' recasted wherever RECessary

As per our Report of even date attached

For Singhul Sunil & Associares
Chartered Accountants *
FRN : DDS030N

Place . New Delh

Dwe 2404 2020

The adop

Faor and on behalfl of Board of Directors

R

Shyam Lal Gupta
Director
DIN-UT7598920

P

S
Nipmetde

Hanomanthgouda Paul

Chief Executive Dfficer

Rajendra Sinuh Yadav Surajit Dutta
Durector Director
DIN-07752015 DIN-05687032

A

Pooja Rastog

Rachna Tomar

Chiel Financial Officer

Compamy Secretary
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[RCON DAVANAGERE HAVERT HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45300D L2017 GOL31 7401
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY AS AT 31st MARCH 2020
A. Equity share capital {Rs. in Laes)
" : i
Particulars E:::g!i'ni:i':g‘he Issued during the year Sliacee by hack during Bﬁ::;trt:;gml:;’ilodﬂnf
of the Reporting Period "' MEREE

Balance as at March 31, 2010 5.00 | 10,400.00 2 10,405.00
Balance as at March 31, 2020 10,405 00 0,000.00 - 165,405 1]

: { Lacs)

| Reserve & Surplus

. 7 ? Capital Redemption Tatal
General Reserves Retained Earnings Resitns

Balance as ar April 1, 2008 - 63.07] - £3.07
Changes i accounting policy or prior pericd errors - -
:::it:;ed balance at the beginuing of the reporting J 63.07 Il &3.07
Profit for tha vear 21431 214.31
Other Comprehensive Income -
Remeasurment of Defined Benefit Plans - -
Fareign Exchange translaton difference -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - 214.31 - 21431
Less - Dividends Paid ! = a)
Less ; Dwvidend Distribution Tax - -
Balanee as at March 31, 2019 - 27758 - 277.38
Changes in secounting policy or prior period errors
R:;:;u] balance at the beginning of the reporting 27138 27738
Profir for the year 7744 TT44
Other Comprehensive Income -
Remeasurment of Defined Benerit Plans
Foretgn Exchange wanslation difference
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 7744 T7.44
Buy Back of Equity Shares
Less - Payment of Fee for mcrease m Authorised Capital
Less * Payment for Buy Back of Shares
Less  Drvidends Paid
Less . Dividend Dismibucion Tax
Less: Bonus Tssue |
Total Comprehensive Income for the period | - s_:‘:l,szl - 354,82

As per our Report of even dare attached

For Singhal Sunil & .\ssug‘;tes; Ty
LA

Chartered Accountay
FRN : 005050N ujy P

N DELHI

FRN. £22030H

=4 Sunil Signhal
Partnzr
M. No 086904

Place : New Delh:

Drie 24 06~ 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors (“\

po

Shyam Lal Gupta
Director
DIN-07T598920

Hanumanthgouda Patil
Chief Executive Otficer

Rajendra Singh Yadav
Director
DIN-07752915

Rachna Towwar

Chief Finaneial Officar

Surapt Durta
Director
DIN-6687032

AP

'woja Rastog

Company Secretary
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IRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

I. Corporate Information

lreon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited {IDHHL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of ircon International Limited dom iciled
in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicablz in India, The company came intp
existence when. [rcon International Limited has been awarded the work of Six-Laning of Davanagere — Haveri from km
260+000 to kim 338+923 of NH-4§ (Old NH-4) in the state of Karnataka to be exccuted as Hybrid Annuity Project on DBOT
Annuity Pattern under NHDP Phase — V in accordance with the terms and conditions in the agreement with Narional
Highway Authority of India (NHAI) dated 19-06-2017. In pursuant to the provisions of "Request for Proposal’, the selected
bidder “Ircon Internationa! Limited” has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway
Limited (IDHHL) as wholly owned subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 1lth May 2017,
Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession Agreepient with NHAI on 19th June 2017, In terms of the said agreement,
IDHHL has an obligation to complete construction of the project of Six laning of Davanagsere Haveri section and to keep the
project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose lives have expirad. The Project is under
Anmuity pattem and will be under operation with the TDHHL for 15 years from the Commercial operational Date (COD).
The payments of the same, under Annuity model will be payable at the achievement of specific milestone as per the
agreement. The registered office of the company located ar C-4, District Centre, Saket, and New Delhi - 110017,

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in financial statements are
presented in lakhs, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share dara and as otherwise stated.

The standalone financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their 30%mecting held on
24™ June 2020,

1, Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial staterents of the Co mpany have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles gencratly accepted in
India, including the Tndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notificd under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
tozether with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standardss Rules, 2015 (as amended from time 1o time } and
presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule M1 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule [0, as
applicable to the financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual system of accounting. The
Company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and liabilities, except for the following assets and liabilities which
have been measured at fair value:

e Provisions, where the effect of time valug of meney is material are mzasured at present value
*  Certain financia! assets and liabilities mcasured ar fair value
*  Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given
below. These accounting policies have beer applied consistently to ali perinds presented in the financial statements.

2.2.1  Current vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,
An asset is treated as current when it is:

® Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in nommal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purposs of irading

*  FExpecfed to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period or

e Cash or cash cquivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
velve months after the reporting period

NEW DELHI
FRN. 022030N




[RCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current,
A liability is current when:

» [tisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

= [tisdue to be settled within rwelve months after the reportin g period Jor

»  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afler the

reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash

and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Reeoguition aind Initial Measgeement

Property. plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of sach item can be measured reliably. Property, plant and
equipment are initially stated at their cost.

Cost of asset includes

a) Purchase price. net of any trade discount and tebates

b) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met’

¢} Cost directly attcibutabie to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset to its working
condition for the intended use

d) Incidental expendimre during the coustruction period is capitalized as part of the indirect consiruction
cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction or is incidental thereto.

€). Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site on which
it is located if recognition criteria are met.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

Subrg: JHEIE WIS Hremait

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost of the expenditure can
be measured reliably.

Cost of replacement, major inspection. repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects arc capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are mst,

Depreciarion and usefid fives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment. excluding treehold land is provided on straight line basis
over the estimaled useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule H of the Companies act, 2013,

| Particalars | Uselul lives (Years)

| Building/flats residential/non-residential 60

[ Plant and Machinery : | 8-15

SRy dnstruments B 10 N
> {LFa) Yie




TRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

" Office Equipment’s 5 : _ |

_Purnityre and fixtures ] = 01 |
__Caravans, Camps and temporary shed 3-5 |

| Vehicles | 8-10 '

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the period is charged on
pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of pait is
significant in relation to the total cost of the itent and nseful life of that part is different from the useful life of
remaining asset.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the petiod, individually costing up to Rs. 3000/~ are fully
depreciated, by keeping Re. | as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to
employees are charged o statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed al each financial year-endand adjusted

prospectively, if appropriate. “Ordinarily. the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the original cost of the
asset” as specified in Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013

Digrgcacrition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are sxpected from its use or disposal. Any gain ar loss arising
on derecognition of the assct (caloulated as the difference between e el disposal proceeds aud the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.2.3 Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried at cost
less accumulated impuoirment loss, if any.

2.2.4 lnvestment properties

ixacawniiion gl [213¢ :'-:.','r RIS e m=i

Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be measured reliably. Investment property
comprises completed property, property under construction and property held under a lease that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for
use in production or administrative functions. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other consideration given to acquire an
asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or. where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when
initially recognized in accordance with the specific requirements of other Tnd AS.

Suhsequent measurement and depreciation

[nvestment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumudated impairmient loss, if
any,

Subsequent cost are added if recognition criteria is met, The Company depreciates building component of
investment property on straight line basis over 60 years [rom the date of original purchase/ completion of
construction. Freehold land and property under coastruction is not depreciated.

Leaschold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.




IRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

225

226

financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fuir value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined based on an annual evaluation performed
by an accredited external independent valuer applying valuation model acceplable internationally.

Derecaoenition
R

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is ex pected from their disposal. The difference between
the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit or
loss in the period of derecognition.

Intangible assets

Recomnition gnd inith

Intangible assets are recoanized when it is probable that the firture economic benefits that are attributable 1o
the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asser to its working condition for
the intended use. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are
disclosed as “Intangible assets underdevelopment”!

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any_ Software cost up to Ks. 1 Lakhs m each case 1s tully amornized i the
period of purchase. by keepine Rs_ 1 as token value for identification.

The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date of its acquisition.

Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is charged on pro-rata basis
from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted
prospectively, it appropriate.

An intangible asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expecied from
its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset arc measured as the
ditference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses. whether there is an indication that an asset may be lmpaired. IF
any indication exists, or when annoal Impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asser, unless the asser does not generate cash inflows thar are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considerad impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment
loss, including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

value in use. the estimated furure cash flows are discounted to their present value uzing a pff

W= 4 \&
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IRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the yeay ended March 31, 2020

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assel.

For assets excluding gaodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date 1o determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assu mptions used t¢ determing the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment lass was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recoguized for the asset in prior period.
Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

2.2.7 Inventories

a) Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out (FIFQ) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

b) Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost !l such time the outcome of the jeb cannot be
ascertained reliably and af lower of cost or realizable value thereafter,

c) The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction work-in-
progress In the year of incidence, and pro rata charged ro statement ot protit and loss of the project over
the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the contract as at the end of reporting
period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written off valued at cost.

d) [n Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores nof reimbursable as per the terms
of the Lonttact is shown 4y invenlory valued s per (2) above,

e} Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase

2.2.8 Revenue recognition

a) Service Concession Agreement

The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction and upgrade services in accordance
with Ind AS -115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

The Consideration received or receivable by the Company is a righi to a financial asset. The Company
recognisc a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor ("NHAT™) for the construction services:
the grantor has little, if any, discretion to avoid payment, nsually because the agreement is enforceable
by law. )

The Company has an uncoaditional right to receive cash as the grantor contractuatly guarantees to pay
specified or determinable amounts to the Company. even if pavmeat is contingent on the Company
ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified quality or efficiency requirements.

Contract revenue is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised service to the grantor, The Company’s performance creates /enhances an asset that the
grantor controls as the asset is created or enhanced heunce, the Company transters control over time,
satisfies a performance oblization over time,

The Company recognise revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over timc ouly if it can
reasonably measure its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation,
However, where the Company is not be able to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance
{on. but the Company expects to recover the costs fncurred in satisfying the performanc
. the Company recognise revenus only to the extent of the costs jncurred until such &




IRCON Davanagere Haveri High way Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation,

Performance obligation is measursd by applying input method. luput methods recognise revenue on
the basis of the Company’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to
the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation. If the company’s efforts or
inputs are expended evenly throughout the performance period, the Company is recognizing revenue

on a straight-line basis. Expected input is adjusted for liguidated damages/penalties {LD) due to
detays arising out of the contractual obligations. ;

[n the contracts where performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the Company

apply the output method which faithfully depict the entity’s performance towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised service to the grantor. Damages for delay/Penalty, Escalations and
Benus on early completion is evaluaied by the Management for variable considerations and adjusted
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative

revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

After contract inception, the transaction price can change for various reasons, inchiding the resolution
of uncertain events or other changes in circumstances that change the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the promised goeds or services. The
Company then allocates to the performance obliganions in the contract any subsequent changes in the
transaction price on the same basis as at contract inception. Consequently, amounts allocated to a
satisfied performance obligation are recognised as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the pericd
in which the transaction price changes.

The Company account for a contract medification as a separnte contract on satisfaction of both of the
following conditions:

Q. the scope of the contract increases because of the addition of promised goods or services that
are distinct i.e., the customer can benefit from the goods or services either on its own or
together with other resources thar are readily available to the customer {goods or service is
capable of being distinct) and the Company’s promise to transfer the goods or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises in the Contract (goods or service is
distinct within the contexr of the contract)

b. the price of the contract increases by an amount of consideration that reflects the Company’s
stand-alone selling prices of the additional promised goods or services and any appropriate
adjustments to that price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

If a contract is not accounted as a separate contract, the Company account for the promised goods or
services not yet transferred at the date of the contract modification (i.e. the remaining promised goods
or services). The amount of consideration is re determined which is the sum of the consideration
promised by the customer that had not been recognised as revenue and the consideration promised as
part of the contract modification.

A Contract asset or liability is presented in the Balance Sheer when either party performs in a Contract.

A Contract asset reflects the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for good or services that
the Company has transferred to the customer, Essentially the Company has performed prior to the
payment due date. The Conditions artached with this are other than passage of time. If the payment due
date is conditioned only by passage of time, the Company present this separately as a receivable.

A Contract liability is hoaked when the Company has an obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer. In this situation, the Company has either already receive consideration from the customer, or

customer owes consideration and it is uncondilional (the customer pays or owes payment before the
SLBany performs),




IRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020

b) Other income

* Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
* Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate methad.,

2.2.9 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use ar sate are capitalised as part of the cost
of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the horrowing costs,

2.2.10 Taxes
a) Current income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expecied to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax
payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax
regulations. Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except 1o the extent it relates to
items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or dircetly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
remrns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legaily enforceable right to offset and
intends either to sertle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the lability simultansousty,

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax basss of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rares that are expected to apply in the period when

the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting dare.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised
outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income

or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation ta the underlying transaction either in OC1 or
direetly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that i
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised

to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offser current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate o the same faxation authority.

21.2.11 Foreign currencies

included in the financial starements are measured using the currency of the primary econopfe®
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environment in which the entity operates (“the functional curreacy™). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

¢ Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional currency
using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for assets). Won-
monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the darte of the transactions.’

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, af rates
different from those at which they were initiaily recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and

loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in the statement of profit
and [oss on net basis.

2.2.12 Employee benefit

a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related Pay
(PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-tenm
employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit and
loss in in the perind in which the emplayee renders the related services

b) Post-employment benefits and Other Long term Employee Benefits

The Post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by lrcon International
Liwited, the Holding Company, as the employees aie on the depuration from the Holding Company.

2.2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits sith original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changze in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash Aows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and

short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

2.2.14 Dividend

Annual Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity sharcholders is recognized as liability in the period in
which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recoghized as liability on approvat

by the Board of Directors. Dividend pavable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognized
directly in equity.

2.2.15 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a result ofa
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required o
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration re

Zy
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b)

c)

d

22.16

a)

i)

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisious are discounted using 2 current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Company
cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract refiect the least net cost of
exiting from the coniract. which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it. [f the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under
the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an
oncrous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets
dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed at cach reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. no provision or
disclosure iz made.
These ars reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estinuates
Contingent assets
Coulingeul assels are npot recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of cconomic benefits is
probable.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, 4 lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-nf-use assets

The Company recognizes righi-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {ie.. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measurcd at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terim and the estimated useful lives of the
assels.

Leaschold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amorrized,

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated usefu! lite of the asset.
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b)

2.2.17

il Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lzase. the Company recognizes lease liabilities measursd at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed paymeng
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The leage
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for tenminating the lease, if the Jease term reflects the Company
exercising the option fo terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the preseut value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing eate at the
lease conumencement date because the interest rate implicic in the lease is not readily determinatiie. Afier
the commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term. a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments résulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments;} or a change in
the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company's {ease liabilities are included in financial liabilities
iit) Short term lease and leases of low value asseis

The Company applies the shorl-term lease recognition exzmption to its shori-term leases comniracts
including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
Icss from the commencement date aud du nul cunlain 4 purchiase vptivi). I also applies the lease of low-
value asseis recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be tow value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and l2ases of Jow-value assets ars recognised as expense on a siraishi-line
basis over the lease term.

Cormpany as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss dus to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurrsd in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

Inidiad recognition und mecsirement

All Financial assets are recognised initially at tair value plus or minustransaction cost that are directly
artributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assels at air value through
profit and foss). Transaction costs directly attributable o the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised numediately in statement of profit and loss.
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*  Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whosz objective is to hold assets for collecting coutractual
cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thar are solely paymeats of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) methiod. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

= Debt instraments at FYTOCI

A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

b.  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal anount outstanding.

Debt instruments inclnded within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other compreheusive incoms
LOCI). However, the Company recognizes nterest income, impatrment losses & reversals and toreign
exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecagnition of the asset, cumulative Zain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statément of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income in statement of
profit and loss using the EIR method.

*  Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual catzgory for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

s  Eguitv instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at Fair vatue. Equity instruments which are
held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCL, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCT. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to statement of profit and loss. even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

(mpaivment of framcial azsels

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Cowmpany in accordance
e contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i, all cash shortfalls),
Lx A

<hunted at the original EIR.
QN Q | / \,@/




TRCON Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements tor the year ended March 31,2020

————

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVYTOC!

c. Lease receivables under nd AS 116

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that reselt from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at EVTPL

£. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of inpairment loss allowance on:

s Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
e All lcase receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track chanzes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company delermines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit cisk since initial recognition. [f credit risk
has nol increased siznificantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for Impairtnent loss, However, if
credit risk has tncreased significantlv, lifetime ECL is used. [f, in a subsequent period. credit quality of
the instrument improves such that thece is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the enrity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetfime FCT are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
lite of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resulis from default
events that are possible within 12 mounths after the reporting dats.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income’
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head “other expenses’ in
the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

* Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.. as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Uintil the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount,

* Loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, ie. as a liability,

*  Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measuced at FVOCL the expected
credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value,
[nstead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at amortised
cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the ‘accumulated impairment amount™

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (PGCT} financial assets, ie..
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Dxerecagntian of flremiicel dasvets

A financtal asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial
5 is derecognized only when the contracrual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
s\(he financial assets and substantially all risks and vewards of the ownership of the asset. ;
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——

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

b) Financial liabilities

Initial recagoiionr and megsnsenon

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attriburable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings ather
financial liahilities etc.

Sethseguent measiremen!

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

e  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The company has not designated any financial liabilitics at FVTPL .

»  Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After itial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are
subsequeatly measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an interal part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
i the stutement of profit and loss.

Lerecognition of financial lubifiiize

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profir
and loss,

¢) Financial guarantee coniracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payimett {o be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a pavment
when due in accordance with the rerms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee confracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value. adjusted for transaction costs that are directly atiributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of

loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Tnd AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortisation.

d) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assats and liahilities on initial recognition, Afler
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liubilities. For financial assets which arc debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes fo the business model are
xpecied to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to extemal parties. A change in the business model
hen the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to itg
)\ [ the Company reclassities financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively fig a"%
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the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

&) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assers and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable contractual fegal right Lo offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanegusly.

2.2.18 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at Fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the ltability takes place either: s

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
»  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advan tageous market for the asset or liabitity
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants womld use
when pricing the asset or liability. assum ing that market participants act in their economic best inferest,

A fair valuc measurcment of a nun-financial asset tahes intu decowil 1 ket paibivipaut’s ability W generate
economic benefits by using the asset in irs highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and tor which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemments are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurenient as a whole:

* Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement s a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each reporting date,
the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be
remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
cxplained above.

poticy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosutes are ziven in the

SV
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2.2.19 Non — current asset held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classitied as assets held for sale when their carrying mmount is to
be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The sale i5
considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in jrs
present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is expected within one year from the
daie of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated a the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, Property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assefs are not depreciated or amortized once classified as held for sale. Assets classified as held for
sale/distribution are presented separately in the balance sheet.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Noa-current Assets Held for Sale™ are no longer met, the disposal group
ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount belore the assel was classified as held for safe, adjusted fur
depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset ot been classified as held for sate, and (31) its
recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. The
depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assetsis charged to statement of profit and loss in the period when non-current assets held for sale criterin are
no longer met.

2.2.20 Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relatin g to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does oot exceed 0.50% of total
operating revenuc as per lust audited [iancial slaternent of the Company

2.2.21 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are connintaushy evalusted by the
Company and arz based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors {including
expectations of firture events), that the Company believes to be reasanable nnder the existing circumstances,
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred
after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as af the reporting date. Althoush the
Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could differ materially from these estimates - even
if the assumiptions underlying such estimates were reasonable when made, il these results differ from
historical experience or other assumptions do not tum out to be substantially accurate. The changes in
estimates are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which they become known.

The key assumptions voncerning the fumire and other key sources of estimation uncerfainty at the reporting
« date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. are described below. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

a.  Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimared irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables balances and

historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when masagement desms not be
collectible.

b. Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against
the Company. There are certain obligations which masagements huve concluded based on all availuble
facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or ditficult to quantify reliably and such obligations
are treated Aysagtingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no assurance of the fital

e poeedings in which the Company is involved. it is not expected that such contingencies
[Tect on its financial position of probability.
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¢.  Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumiptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assum ptions and selecting the inputs to the
impaimment calculation, based on the Company’s past history. existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d, Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising between
the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on
reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of
previous fax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible
tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the
conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required (o
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised. based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits togsther with future tax planning strategies.

e. Impairment of non tinancial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and iis value in use. The fair valus less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from bindin g sales transactions, conducted ar arm’s
length. for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the assct. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.

. Determining the lease'term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with auy periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonablv certain to be exercised. or any periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Comipany applies
Jjudgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exarcise the option o renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination. A fter the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is withia ils control and affects its ability
10 exercise or not {o exercise the option to renew or Lo terminate (e.z.. consrruction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

g. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfisd over time afler reasonably
estimating ifs progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obl igation.

The recogaition of revenue requires assessments and judgments to be made on changes in work scope,
claims {compensation, rehates ete.) and other payments to the extent performance oblization is satistied and
they are probable and are capable of being reasonably measured. For the purpose of making estimates for
claims. the company used the available contractual and historical information.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Computers Total

Gross Carrving Amount (At Cost)

At1 April 2018 - -
Additions - -
Disposals/Adjustments - -

Exchange Gain/ Loss - =
At 31 March 2019 2 T
Additions 0.42 0.42

Disposals/Adjustments = 2

Exchange Gain/ Loss - -
At 31 March 2020 0.42 0.42

Depreciation and impairment
At1 April 2018 B B
Depreciation charge for the year -

Impairment 2 -

Disposals/Adjustments

Exchange Gain/ Loss i -

At 31 March 2019 v =

Depreciation charge for the vear 0.12 0.12

Impairment g =
Disposals/Adjustments - =

Exchange Gain/ Loss - -

At 31 March 2020 0.12 0.12

Net book value
At 31 March 2020 0.30 0.30
At 31 March 2019

P




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2020

4 Other Financial Assets

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Foot Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Contract Assets Considered Good

Financial Asset- Construction Contract ] 25,474.31 13,425.91
Total - Other Financial Assets 25,474.31 13,425.91
Foot Notes:-

1. Financial Assets - Construction contract is the Highway being made by IDHHL under
Hybrid Annuity Model (HAM) (Refer Note 23)
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5 Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax
Diselnsure pussiant to Ind AS 12 “Income Tases”

{a) The major compenents of income tax expense for the vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are :

(Rs.

5.Na| Particulars

For the Year ended

in Lacs)

L [Profit and Loss Section
Current income tax :
Current income tax charge

Deferred tax :

luncome tax expense reported in the Profit and Loss section

2 |Other Comprehensive Income (OCT) Section

Income tax refated (o items recognised in OCT during the year:
Netloss!{gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plas

Net loss/{gain} on lreizn opertion

315t March 2020 Jlst March 2019
1142 7360
Adyusunent in respect of curment @y af previous vear = -
Relaung w origination and reversal of temporan diifersnces 13.63 3303
3505 111.62

Income tax expense reported in the OCT section

by

Reconcilistion of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Tndia's domestic tax rate for 3| March 2020 amd 31 March 20(9;

(Rs. in Lacs)

5.No.| Particulars

For the Year ended

3151t Murch 2020 31st March 2019
I | Accounting profit before mcome tax 11249 32504
2 |Corporate L rate a5 per Income Ly Aot 1961 25 168% 27321%:
3| Taxon Accounting profit (31= (1) * (1) 2831 LR
4 |Effect of Tax Adjusimenis:
(i) |Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous vears - -
(i) |Uubsation of previously unrecoznised Lo losses “ -
{ui) | mpaet of Rate Difference - -
(ivh | Tax on Tncome exemp! from tax - =
) [Mpn-deductible oxpenses for tax purposes - -
=0Oiher country additional tax = 4
-iber non-deductible sxpenses - -
(vt} | Tax effect of various other il=ms 20l
3 |Tnhesme tax expense reporied in the Statement of Profit and Loss 111.62 ]
6 |Effective Tax Rage 34.25%
(e} Components of deferred tax (assets) and liahilites re gnised in the Bal Sheet and 5 of Profit or Loss
(Rs. in Lacy)
[5.No, Particulars Balance sheet Statement of profit or loss
31st March 2020 315t Murch 2019 35t March 2020 315t March 2019
1 |Propeny. Plant & E (inchuding intaible); Dillzrence in honk :
depreciaion and income (ay fdepraciation (0.0 : (0L &
2| Provisicns - - - -
3| hems disallowed w's 438 of Incoma Tax Act, 196 - - < .
4 | Impact of expenditre charged to the statement of profit and loss in the
current vear and garlier vears but allownble for to purpases on pas iment - - 4 -
basis
3 | Fairvaluanon af fnancial instruments - - - -
6 | Unutilised sain/lass on FVTOCT equity secunties md EVTPL Mutual
funds - 3 g i
7 | Others | 13.77 27.39 -13.62 -35.93
[Nu deferred rax assets/(liabilities) | 13.7 27.34 | (13.63) 135.93)

(d) Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

(s, in Lacs)

§.No/[Particulars [ 31stMarch 2020 31st March 2019
I |Defered tr assets | 1377

2 |Defamed tax liability | ~1til -

[ Deferved Tax Asset{ Liabilities) (Ner) [ 13.76 17.39

Note: Deferred tox sssets and defzmed vax linbilities have

(e} Reeonciliation of deferred tax (abilides) assets:
As at 31 March 2020

it ollset as they relate 10 the same goveming laws.

(Rs. in Lacs)

5. No | Particulars

As at st April
2019 (Net)

o in

statement of profit
and lpss

Recognised in OCT

Balance
Asac 3st March,
2020 {Net)

I |Progeny. Plunt & Equipment fincluding intangibie), Difference in book
depregeation and income tax depreciation

Provisions

Items disaltowed u/s 438 of Incom= Tax Act. 1961

Imipact of expenditure charezd to the statement of profit and loss in the
current vear mnd earfier veors bul allowable for s purposes on pavmeEnt
basis

Fair valuawan of finanaal mstrumenis

Unutilised gainfloss on FVTOC! squity secumties md FVTPL Mutual
finds

7 | Dthers- Pre incorporauon Expenditure

= ot

<00 =

-3¢

2 -

to.o1)

13.77

Net deferred tax assets/{linhilities)

13.63) B

13.76

As at 31 March 2019

{Rs. in Lacs)

S.No.[Particulars

in

Asat Ist April  statement of profit

2018 (Net)

and loss

Recognised in OC1

Balance
As at 315t March,
2019 (Ner}

| |Property. Plant & Equipmient |including intangibl2) Difference in book
depreciation and mcome (ax depreciation

Provisions

ltems disallowad ws 438 of Tncome Tax Act. 1961

Tinpact of expenditure charsad 1o the statement of prafit and loss in the
current vear and earlier years bul allpwable for tas purposes on pavment
basis

Fuir valuatian of financial instrumenis

Unutitised sandloss on FYTOCT equaty seeurniezs and FVTPL AMuual
funds

Othiers- Pre incorporation Expenditure

(RN

=W

653,32

-35.93 =

63.32

(35.93) =

Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities)

e /\(&




6.1

6.2

6.3

[RCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HICHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 3Ist March 2020

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

{Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Unsecured : considered good

- Trade receivables * (Refer Note no. 23) 792.02 10.099.60
Considered Doubtful

- Trade receivables - =
Less : Impairment allowances for doubttul dehts - -
Total 792.02 10,099.60

Cash and Cash equivalents (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash in hand - -

Balances with banks:
— On current accounts
— Flexi Deposits with ariginal maturity of less than 3 months

Total

Other Financial Assets

1.67 0.74
217.50 133.30
219.17 134.24

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

a) Considered Good

Security Deposits

- Others 0.63 0.63
Interest Acerued on FDR 0.63 0.03
Other Recoverable 0.04 0.47
Contract Assets:

Financial Asset- Construction Contract 16.814.29 -
Total - Other Financial Assets - Good 16,315.61 1.13
b) Considered Doubtful

Security Deposits

- Government Departments - &

- Others - &
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful - -
Grand Total - Other Financial Others 16,815.61 1.13

Foot Notes:-

Financial Asscts - Construction contract is the Highway being made by 1D

(Refer Note 237
.‘_.-"/ I \r__-_

HHL under Hybrid Annuity Model (HAM)




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017G 01317401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st Mareh 2020

7 Current Tax Assets (Net)

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Foot Note 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 678.50 336,73
Current tax Assets (Net) 678.50 336,73

8  Other Current Assets

(Rs. in Laes)

Particulars 31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Unsecured : considered good

a) Advances Other than Capital Advances

Advances to Contractors against material and machingry - -
Advances to Contractors, Suppliers and Others - Related Party 1.382.53 7.269.00
Advance Recoverable from:

- Goods & Services Tax 4,736,509 1,515.89
Total - Advances Other than Capital Advances 611912 8,784.89
b) Others
Prepaid Expenses 17.99 2047
Tutal - Others 17.99 2047
c) Interest Accrued but not due
On Mobilisation advanes to IRCON - 47.98
Total - Tnterest Acerued but not due - -
Grand Total 6,137.11 8,833.34
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TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U43300DL201 7GO3 17401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 315t March 2020

Equity Share capital (Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Authorised share capital
21.70,50,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 sach 21.705.00
21.705.00

TssuedSuhscribed and Paid up Capital

16,40,50,000 Equiry shares of Rs 10 sach-fully pad ) [ 6.405.00 10,405 00
Tatal 1640500 [0.405.00
tails of shaveholders holding in the ¢ any
31 March 2020 31 March 2010
Namie of the shareholder o
Ya <
No. of Share holding “;Iams: Nu. of Share o holdi
Trzon Intemational Limited- Holdms Compamy (IRCON) 15.40,30.000 100 10, 40,30,000 0n
Total ToA030,000 100 T A0,50.000 Ty

Aggregate no. of equity shares issued as bonus, shaves issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the perivd of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

Particulars S March 7070 31 March 2019 31 March 2014 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
No. of Share Mo of Share Ne. of Share No. of Share No. of Share
Equiry shares allatted ather than cash - - & 2 .
Equity shares issued as bonus shares - = = a <
Equity shares Buy Back - - - 3 8,
Toral - - - > =

Terms / Rizhts attached tu Equity Shares -

() Votiny ;
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of R 10 per share. Each holder of equity shars is entitled 10 one vore per share

(b} Licpudation -
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares wall be entiled w receve raimaining assets of the Company, ufter distrbution of all preferenual amounts The distribution will be m
proportion ta the aumber of equity shares held by the sharcholders

() Dradend

The disdend propased by the Board of Directors 15 subject to the approval of the sharshoiders i ensumz Ammal General Meeung

Reconciliation of the number of equiry shares and share capital outstanding ar the beginning and at the end of the year

{Rs. in Lacs)
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Particulars
No of shares Rsin Lacs No of shares Rsin Lacs
lssu:dﬁmlxsfnb:d and Paid wp equity Capital ourstanding at the 10.40,50.000 10.405.00 50.000 S
beginnmg of the year
Add: Shares Tssued during the vear 6,00,00,000 o, (0 () 10,40,00,000 10,400.00 ;
Less: Shares Buy Back during the vear -
Issued/Subseri id up g : : iz 3 s =
ssaed: Subscribed and Paid up squity Capital aurstanding ar the 16,40,50,000 16,405.00 10,40,50,000 10.405.00
end of the year




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2020

Other Equity

{Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(a) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 277.38 63.07
Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 77.44 214.31

Less: Dividend declared and paid during the year including
Corporate Dividend Tax

Closing Balance 354.82 277.38

(b) General Reserve
Opening Balance s
Closing Balance - =

(c) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance -
Add: Transfer for Buy Back of Equity Shares -

Closing Balance . a

(d) Ttems of other comprehensive income

Opening Balance =
Foreign Currency Translation (net of tax) -

Closing Balance g - -

Grand Total 354.82 277.38

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves:

(a) Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.

AV



TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERT HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GO13 17401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 315t March 2020

11 Financial Liabilities (Non Current)

11.1  Borrowings

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Secured:
Loan from Holding Company{Trcon International Limited)® 26.922.00 13,000.00
Tatal 26,922.00 13,000.00
Notes @

* Terms & Conditions of Loans
(1) The Company will pay Interest rate to be charged on loan shall be at SBI MCLR rate prevaling from ume to time plus
0.50%.

tit} Duration of the Loan Disbursement would be a period of 30 month from the date of signing this agreement,

tiii] Term loan shall be repaid in 10.5 years starting fram | Apnit 2021

(v} Interest shall be paid on monthly basis on the last day of each month,

{¥) The loan shall be disbursed in tranches as per the requirement of the borrower

(vi) Actual time taken m construction of the project shall be moratorum penod subject to the condition that moratorium period
shall not exceed 5 vears from the date of signing of this agreement.

(vii} The loan shall be secured by-

la) A first mortgage & charged on all berrower's immovable properties | both present and foture save and except the project
assets

(b} A first charge on all borrower's tangible moveable asset

(£.) A first charge over all bank accounts of the barrower

(d} Same being applied to the extent of waterfall of prionity of payment as specified in article 25 of concession agraement and
article + of escrow agreement and not beyond thar

(&) A charge on all intangibles of the borrower

(1) A charge by way of creation of secured interest over:

(i) The right title,imterest  benefits, claims and demands of the borrower.in to and under the project documents

(1) The nght ticle.mterest benefits.claims and demands of the borrower,in to and wider all approvals and insurance contracts

{iii} The right title, interest benefits claims and demands of the horrower.in to and under any letter of credin gurantees including
contractor gurantees and liquidated damages and performance bond providad by the any party to the project documents.

12 Finuncial Liabilities (Current)
12,1 Trade Payables
(Rs, 1o Lages)

13

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Micro, Small & Mediom Enterprises (Refer Nate no 31) - o
Others:
{a) Comtractor & Supplicrs 0.16 1.27
(b} Related Paries 253471 4.66
Total 2,534.87 6.03

Other Financial Liabilities

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Intcrest Payvable on Advance from Chient 44771 140,66
Other Payables (including Staft Payable) 62.9] .19
Total 310.62 141.85
14 Other Current Liabilities
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
a) Contract Liability

Advance from clients 2,942 .50 882750
b} Others -
Statutory dues 460.97 220.58
Taotal 3.403.47 9,048.08
Nore

* 2| phStathtory dues includes liabiling

for Goods and Service Tax (GST} and other statutory dues,
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI3 17401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 3 Ist March 2020

15 Revenue from operations

(Rs. in Lacs)
Pazsics For the period ended3ist March For the period ended 315t
e 2020 Mareh 2019
Construcrion Contract revenue under SCA (Refer Note 23) 39.283.50 3127032
Total 39,283.50 31,270.32

16 Other Income

(Rs. in Laes)
Particular For the period ended3 1st March For the period ended 3 1st
;2 2020 March 2019
Interest Income ;

Interest income earned on mobilisation advances 416.05 290.24

- 156.30 133,94
38.77 3619

Less - Interest cost on mobilisation advance from chents

=341 16 74.89
Bank Interest Gross

L
[ Total

113.66 170.13




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U43300DL.2017GOT317401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2020

17 Project and Other Expenses
(Rs. in Laes)

Project Expenses Other Expenses
Particulars For the year ended 315t For the year ended For the year ended [For the year ended 31st]
March 2020 31st March 2019 31st March 2020 Mareh 2019
Work Expenses 37,185.90 30,636.58 - -
Inspectu:_m. G?o Technical Investigation & 251.07 167 13 - &
Survey Exp. Etc
Rent - Non-residential 273 229 - -
Rares and Taxes - 0.41 - -
Insurance 31,389 3013 -
Travelling & conveyvance 0.36 n.92 - -
Printing & stationery 024 0.22 - -
Legal & Professional charges 15.07 5.61 0.24 -
Auditors remuneration - - 0.95 0.50
Miscellaneous expenses 0.04 - - -
Total 37,491.30 30,846.31 1.19 0.50
(i) Payment to Statutory Auditors: {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2020 For the year ended 31st March 2019
1a) Audit Fee - current year 0.80 0,40
(b) Tax Audit Fees - current year b1s 0.07
tc) Certificanon Fees - 0.03
Total 0.95 .50
18 Employee Remuneration and Benefits (Rs. in Laes)
For the year ended 31st March 2020 For the year ended
: Other Other
Particulars : hi | 5 : &
Operating |(Administrativ| Total | Operating |(Administr| Total
€) ative)
Salaries, wages and bonus 28.71 - 2871 17 44 - 1744
Cantribution to provident and other funds 269 - 269 039 - 039
Retirement Benefils 126 - 2.26 | 091 - 091
Total 33.66 - 33.66 | 18.74 = 18.74
19 Finance Cost (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2020 | For the vear ended31st March 2019
Interest Expense ( Loan from [RCON) 1.751.41 24019
Other Borrowing Cost = 7
Bank Guarantee & Other Charves 6.99 878
Interest Expenses on Other Financial ) )
Liabilities {Mob advance from Cliznt)
Total 1.758.40 248.97

20 Depreciation, amortization and impairment
(Rs. in Laes)

Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2020 | For the year ended31st March 2019

Property, Plant and equipment 012 -

Total 012 i -
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U43300DL20TTGOTA I T401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st Mareh 2020

Earnings Per Share
Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 “Eamings per share’

Basic FPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year amributable to equily holders by the weighted average numb

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the prafit for the year attributable 1o te equiry holders afte

er of equity shares outstanding dusing the year

T eonsidening the effect of dilution by weighled average number of equity shares

outstanding during the vear plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issuzd on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

(i) Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)

Particnlars Note For the year ended 315t | For the year ended 31st
March, 2020 March, 2019

Profir artributable o Equity holders (Rs. in lacs) (i) 7.44 21431

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Dilured EPS (iii) 1369 638

Earnings per share (Basic) 0.06 033

Eamings per share (Diluted) 0.06 0.34

Face value per share [

(ii) Profic attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) {Rs. in lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

Farticulars

For the year ended 315t

For the year ended 3151

Mareh, 2020 March, 2019
Profit for the year a5 per Statement of Profit and Loss Tl44 21431
Profit aniributable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS 7744 214.31
{iii) Wc_ighlet! average number of equity shares (nsed as d or) {Nos.) (Rs. in Lacgz
Particulars For the year ended 315t | For the year ended 31st
Mlareh, 2020 March, 2019
Opening balance of issued equity shares 2.50
Equity shares issued during the year 637 50
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 1,369.27 638.09
Dilurion Effect:
Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the vear -
Weighted avernze number of equity shares for ¢ Diluted EPS 1369.27 635.09
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Details of Related Party Transactions during the year

a) Kev management personnel:

(i) Directors from TRCON Mr Ashok Kumar Goyal (w.e.f [1th May 2017), Mr Surajil Dutta (w.e.

CIN- U43500DL2017GOI317401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2020

Mr Rajendra Singh Yadav (w.e.f 27th January, 2020), Mr Basant kumar (w.e § 19th Sep. 2019),

{11) Others : Mr. Nagangouda Hanumanthgouda Patil, Chief Exccutive Officer (w.e.f 18th July, 2
and Ms. Pooja Rastogi, Company Seeretary (w.e.f 15t April, 2019)

(b) Remuneration to Key management personnel are as under:

(Hs. in Lacs)

s s During the Period |During the Period upto
sk tarticns upto §1-03.zazo 032010
1 Short term employee benefits 28.71 17.44
2 Post emplovment benefits 269 .39
3 Sitting fee - -
4 Other long-term employes benefits 226 091
TOTAL 33.60 18.74

(c) Details of Related Party Transactions during the vear

TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

'5th Sep. 2018). Mr Shyam Lal Gupta (we f |5t November, 20 19),

018). Ms, Rachna tomar, Chief Financial Officer (w,e.f31st March, 2020y

[Rs. in Laes)

Transactions (Rs.) Outstanding Amount
I:a]m: 4 Pa U‘_‘L’arﬁcuiar o = = "
i D‘L'::f ;'1":]:‘;; p UWHig e P;;_';;’ ool AS at 315t March 2020 | As at 31s¢ March 2019

Investment in Equity f,000.00 10.400 00 16.,403.00 10,405.00
Loans 13,922.00 13,000,00 26,922.00 13.000.00
Other Payables 2,334.71 466 2,534.71 4.66

Ircon Other receivables 1,382,535 7,316.98 1,382.33 7.316.98

International [Rendering of services

{LIL':I'J:; Works Contract 37.185.90 30,636.58 g )

company) Rent 2:93 2.29 - B
Interest on Loan - Expenses 1,731 41 240.19 - -
Interest On Mobilization Advance- Income 416.03 290.24
Reimbursement of Expenses 13 34 19.12 - -
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI1317401
Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2020

Service Concession Arrangements
Public to private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession Arrangements
(Ind AS-115). Appendix "C" is applicable if:
a)  The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure. to whom it must provide
them. and at what price: and
b) The Grantor controls- through ownership. heneficial entitlement. or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.
It both of the above conditions are met simultaneously. a financial asset is recognized to the extent that the operator has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset from or at the discretion of the Grantor for the service.
These Mnancial assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct
costs directly attributable to the operation. They are then stated at amortized cost at the end of each linancial year.
Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IDHHL) has entered into service concession atran gement with National Highway
Authority of India (NHAI) dated 19-06-2017. in terms of which NHAI (the grantor) has authorized the company for development,
maintenance and management of National Highway No. 48 (Old NH-4) including the section from Km 260.00 to Km 338.923
(approx. 78.923 Km) on Davanagere - Haveri Section of National Highway No. 48 (Old NH-4) in the State of Karnataka by six-laning
thereof on design, build, finance, operate and transfer basis . In terms of the said agreement IDHHL has an oblipation to complete
construction of the project of Six laning of Davanagere Haveri section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition
including all projects assets whose lives have expired. The Project is under Annuity pattern.
The Concession period shall be 15 years commencing from the appointed date. At the end of the concession period. the assets will be
transferred back to National Highway Authority of India (NHAT).
In case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and IrconDHHL have right to terminate the agresment if they are not able
to cure the event of default in accordance with such agreement.
Company has recognized financial asset of Rs.42288.60 Lakhs under service concession agreement upto the period ended 3 1st March
2020 after taking into account the receivables due from NHAT on completion ol milestone as per terms of the contract, The company
has recognised revenue of Rs 39283.50 Lacs for the period upto 3 1st March 2020 on construction of Road under SCA as per Ind AS -
115 related to "Revenue from Customers”. The company has recognized receivable under service concession arrangement and shown
under Other Financial current Assets which it will receive as per terms of the contract based on the completion of milestone. as on
31st March 2020.
Disclosure in terms of Appendix D of Ind AS 115
[n terms of the disclosure required in Appendix D in Ind AS -115 Revenue ffom Customers, as nolified in the companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) rules 2016, the amount considered in the financial statements up to the balance sheet date are as follows:-
(Rs. in Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31st  ended 31st
March, 2020 March, 2019
Contract Revenue Recognized 39.283.50 31,270.32
Aggregate amount of cost incurred 39.283.50 31,270.32
Amount of advance received from Client 2.942.50 8.827.50
Amount of retention by Client 5 -
Profit/{ Loss) recognised during the period for exchan ge of construction
service for a financial asset
|£rm:55 amount due from Client for Contract Works 792.02 10.0995‘
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401
Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended 31s¢ March 2020

25 Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets:

27

(I) Contingent Liabilities:

{a) Claims against the company not acknowledge as debt: Rs. NIL (Previous Year NIL).
{b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantee:Nil (Previous Year Rs.5885.00 Lacs)

(IT) Contingent Assets: Rs. NTL {Previous Year NII.)

L. Commitments:
a) Esumated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) is Rs. 41850.30 Lacs. (Previous Year
Rs. 75431 37 Lacs).

b) Other Commitments: Rs. NIL (Previous Year NTL ),

TI. Segment Reporting:

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterpeise for which discrete financial information is available which is being
evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance.
The Board of Directors of the Company is the Chief Operating Deeision Maker (CODM). The operating segments have been reported in
amanner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for review of performance
and allocating resources.

The Company has determined reportable operaring segments from geographical perspective,

The Company is operating only in Tndia. which is considered as a single geographical segment, henee segment reporting is not required.
HI. Interest in other Entities: Rs. NIL (Previous Year NIL ).

-Disclosure regarding Leases:

A. As A Lessee

The Company’s leasing arrangements are in respect ol premiscs for residential use of employees and its head office. This leasing
arrangements are cancellable and are usually renewable on mutually agreed terms, therefore its is covered in short term leases as per the
Ind AS-116 and company is showing its rental expenses under the other expenses in the Note-17. The amounts of lease payments during
the year are as under;

(a) Lease payments (net of recoveries) in respact of premises for residential use of employees — Rs. NIL (Previous Year NIL).

(b} Lease payments in respect of office premises —Rs. 2.73 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 2.29 Lakhs) (included in Project expenses & Other
expenses note 17).

B. As a Lessor: Rs. NTL (Previous Year NIL ).
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL201 TGOI31 7401
Notes to the Financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2020
I pairment of assets

In compliance of Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assers”, the Company has reviewed the assets at year-end for mdication of impairment lazs, if amy. as per the
accounting policy of the Company As there is no indication of impairment, no imparrment loss has been recogmised during the vear

Em plovee Benefits
The Person working for Ireon Davanauer Havert Highway Limited ace posted on nommation/secondment basis from Freon [ternational Limited (Holding
Company)

The provision for rstirement benefit of nominated employees i terms of Tnd AS-10 15 bemng made by its holding company as per accounting policy

Provident fund contrbution of the emplayees on nomination fsecondment has heen remularly depasited by the holding company with its PF Trust,

Revenue from contract with custom ers as per Ind AS-115

Disaggregation of Revenue
Set out below ia the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers into aperating segment and type of product or services.

(Rs. in Laes)

Type of For the year ended March 31, 2020

Produet or Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring performance obligation Other Total as per
Services Revenue Statement of Profit

and Loss
Domestic | Foreign Total Input Method Qutput Method

Railways - - - - - - -
Highway 39.283.50 = 39.283.50 39283 50 - - 39.283.50
Electrical - & - - 5 - =
Bunlding - = o - - - -
Others & 1 - - - - - -
Total 39.283.50 | = | 39.283.50 | 39,283.50 - - 39,283.50

Ot of the total revenue recounised under Ind AS 115 during the vear, Rs 39.283 78 lucs is recounised over a period of time and Rs Nil lucs recognised point i
time,

iRs. in Lacs)

Type of For the year ended March 31, 2019

Product or Revenue as per Ind AS 115 [ Method for measuring performance obligation Other Total as per

Services Domestic | Foreign Tatal | Input Method Output Method Revenue | Statem ent of Profit

and Loss

Railways - - = 3 .| I =
Highway 31,270,532 31,270.32 31,270.32 - - 31,270.32
Electrical - = - = = 3 3
Bunldineg - - | - - - -
Others = = - - - - -
|Total 31,270.32 | & 31,27032 | 3127032 - = 31,270.32

Out of the rotal revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during the vear, Rs 31 27032 |acs 15 recognised over a period of ume and Rz Nil lacs recognised pome m
timee,
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i

Lin)

(i)

The Company has applied modified retrospective approach for the application of Ind AS 113 "Revenue from contracts with customers” and the effect 13 Nil on

retamed earnings as at Apnl 1, 2018

Contract balunces

{Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Trade Receivables (Note 5) 70202 10,009 .60
|Contract Assets (Note 4 & 6) 42,288.60 13,425.01
| Contract Lizbilities {Note 14) 2,942,350 8.827.50

Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and the customer profile 1s Natenal Highway Authoriy of India. The Company’'s average project execution cycle s
around 24 (0 36 months. Ceneral payment terms include mobilisation advance, monthly progress payments with a credit penod rangimg from 45 to 60 davs.

Contract Assets are recognised over the period in which services are performed o represent the Company's right to consideranon in exchange for goods or services
transferred 1 the customer [0neludes balances due from custamers under construction contracts that anse when the Company receives payments from custemers
as per terms of the contracts however the revenue 15 recogmsed over the period under input method, Any amount previously recounised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade recervables an satisfaction of the condition attached i e future service whuch 1s necessary 1o achieve the billing milestone

Movement in contract balances during the year

{Rs. in Lacs)
Partieulars As ar As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Contract asset ar the Beginning of the vear 13,42591 245,67
Contract asset at the end of the year 42 288 60 13,425 91
Net increase/decrease 28.862.69 13,180.24

For the year 2019-20, there has been net increase by Rs. 28,862 .69 lacs as compared 1o last vear 15 due o recoghition of revenue based on input method whergas

hills for work done are certified based on contract condition

For the vear 2018-19. there has been net increase by Rs. 13 180 24 lacs as compared to last vear is due 1o recognition of revenue hased on mput method whereas

bills for work done are certified based on contract condition

Contract

abilites relabing to constiuction contracts are balances due 1o customers, these anse when a partculer milestone payment exceeds the revenue

recognised to date under the input method and advance recerved in long term construction contracts. The amount of Advance recerved gets adjusted over the

construction period as and when invoicing 15 made to the custormer

Mavement in contract balances during the vear

{Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2020 315t March, 2019
Contract liabilities at the Begunning of the yvear 835 -
Contract liabilitics at the end of the year 2042 50 8.827.30
Net increase/decrease -5,.885.00 8.827.50

Fer the year 2019-20 - There has been net reduction of Rs 3,885 lacs as compared o last year are mamly due to adjustment of advance payment receved from

clignt agamst works executed during the vear,

Set put below is the amount of revenue recognised fram:

(Ks. in Lacs

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Amount included in contmact liabilities at e b ing of the year

Performance ohliganon satsfied i previous vears

Cost to obtain the contract
Amount recognised as asset as at 31st March, 2020 15 Bs. Nl (As av 31st March, 2019 Rz Nihy

Amount of amoermizsation recogised in the statement of profit and loss during the year s Rs. Nil (FY 2018-19 Rs Nil)
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Performance abligation
Information about the Company's performance oblaations arc summarised beliow

The transaction price allozared 1o the remainng performance obligations (unsatistied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March are, as tollows:

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 315t March, 2020 As at 3ist March,
2019
Within one vear 44791 8 72488 87
More than one vear to 2 vears & 117.70
More than 2 years = = _—
Tatal 44, 79280 84,258.87

* The amount disclosed above does rat include variable consideration which 15 constrained
Information in respect of dues to Micrn and Small Enterprises as vequired by Micro, Small and Mediam Enterprises Development Acr, 2006 (MSMED Act)
(Rs. in Lacs)

SNo Particulars As at 315t March, 2020 As at 31st March,
2019

The principal amount and the interest due therean remaining unpaid to amy
Principal amount due to micra and small Enterprises - (1
Imrerest due on above . -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MEMED -
2 Act 2006 along with the amounts of the pavment made to the supplier bevond the
appomnted day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay m making pavment - -
{which bave been paid but beyond the appointed day during the vear) bur without
adding the mterest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

s

The amount of interest acerued and remaming unpaid at the end of each = =
ZECOI]N[II‘S Yiedr
The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in the succeeding - -
vears, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid ta the

5 small enterprise for the purpose of disallowanee as a deductible expenditure under,
Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Disclosuee as required by Ind AS 1 Py ivn of Fi ial §

Changes in significant accounting policies:

Policy of “Leases” has heen modificd in the significant aceounting policics due to the applicabilioy of Ind AS 116 *|eases”

Ind A5 116 was notified with effect from April 1, 2019 which replaces Ind AS 17, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recomnmion, measurenent,
presencation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet

The Company adopted Ind AS |16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of miial application of April [, 2019 Under this method. the
standard s apphed rerospeetively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recogrused at the date of mitial applicauon The Company clected 1o
use the transition practical expedient not to reassess whether contract is or contams lease at April 01, 2009 [nstead, the Company applied the standards only o
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 Further | company has Applied the shorr-term |eases exemptions to leases with Jease tenn
that ends within 12 months of the date of imual applicanon and the total lease wnm 15 less than 12 months

The Company has lease contracts for its office which is cancellable by the both the lessar and lessee hence its is covered under the short term leases and company
13 having Mil inpact due o adaption of the Ind AS-115

During the current vear company has taken the opinion related to the presentation of the meome cared from the mabilisation advance and interest cost of the
mabilisation advance in the financial statements Ind AS | “Presentation of

Fimancial Statements™ allows netting off of these two interests for ACCOUNING purpose as it reflects the substance of the transaction. Based on the Opmion.
campany has netted the interest expenses on the mobiisation advance from the interest mcome eared from the mobilisation advance i the financial statements
and figures of the comparative has been changed accordingly. Further, Company has calculated irs estimated cost of the projeet without considermg the interest
payment on the mobilisatien advance 1 the NHAT and caleulated the revenue accordingly. As it 1s a matter of estimates and presentation hence no change is
required in accounting policy for accounting of these mterest income
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34 Covidi9 Disclosure
The World Health Organisauon (WHO) declared outbreak of novel Coronavirus {COVID -19) 2 alobal pandemic on March 11, 2020, Consequent Lo ths,
Government of India declared nationwide lockdown on March 24, 2620 and ordered temporarily closure of non-cssential businesses, imposad restrictions on the
movement of goods and services, travel arc
As the nature of business performed by the Company, falls under the non-essential category, the Company temporarily suspended the operations in ongoing
projeet in compliance with the lockdown instructions issued by the Central and Srate Governments. These natonwide lockdown restrictions had impacted the
normal operations of the Company by way of interruption of project execution. supply chain disruption and unavailability of personnel durmg the loclkdown period
since 22nd March 2020,
The Central and State Government have witiated the steps to lift the lockdown and the Company 15 adhening to the same as it has resumed its activitics based on
the resources available. The Company has been able 10 resume operatians at varions project sites from the beginning of May i a gradual manoer. The Company
has taken necessary precautions o ensure the health, safety and wellniess of all emplovees and also put in place all the guidelines as per the Central and State
Governments to prevent the spread of COVID-19 The Company expects construction to reach optimum levels once situation normalises post liftung of lockdown
as migrant labourers resume work eradually. Meanwhile, the company 15 exploring inereased use of technology to fasten the pace of construction going forward
Financial performance
The Comparsy believes that for the year 2019-201, there has been no significant impact of Covid| 0 pandemic on the financial performance of the Company in
terms of revenue and profiability of the Company
Liguidicty
The Company has access to sufficient [iquidity for its operation
The Company expects to recover the carmving amount af (s assets compTsmg property, rade recervables, deferred taxes, other Financial and non-financial assets
ele. in the ordinary course of busingss based on information available on current economiz conditions
Steps taken for smooth functioning
During the lockdown periad, the Company has taken varous sieps (owards rethinking the new normal for the business post COVID-19 lackdown The working at
non-critical locations of the Company was streamlined with work from home norms and roster for the employees as per the guidelines issued by the government
autharities was finalised Further, the Company has put in place stringent monitaring processes for COVID-19 ensuring the fallowang:
(1} Thermal Sereening of all emplovees and visitors
(i1} Samtizing the premises and vehicles on reaular basis
(i) Maintenance of social distanciny at all work places
(1v) Enforaing wearing of masks and reeular eleaning of hands
i) Regular health updates of all the emplovees and their families
(v1) Conducting awareness programs regulacly for all s emplovess
Estimation of the future impact of CoVID-19 With the commencement of works at project, the Company is constantly reviewing its operation and 15 making every
possible effort te make up for the lost time dus to the pandemic Though the management expects to have reduction in Revenue and Profitability w1 the FY 2020~
21, the impaet of the tockdown disruption will have to be assessed from time (o time and communi | as we progress during the current financial vear A lot
depends on the success of the various pandemic cantainment efforts being undertaken by the State and Central Governments and Health authorities. It is therefore
premature to forecast the future impact with credibility at this staze
The actual impact of the slobal health pandemic may be differsnt from that which has been estmared. as the COVID 19 sinuation evolves i India and slobally
However, the Company will continue to closely momitor any material changes to future evonomic conditions

35 Certam prior periods amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentations These reclassifications have no cffect on the reported
results of operanons. Also, previous year figures ars shown under bracket () to differentiate from current vear figures
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